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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
IRAEE

Dear Shareholders

On behalf of the Board, it is my pleasure to present the Group's consolidated financial results for
the 2015 Financial Year and give an overview of the Group's strategy and business outlook.

ECONOMIC OVERVIEW AND FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

The global environment last year was full of uncertainties. The lack of growth momentum in
developed markets such as Europe and Japan affected the business sentiments. Developing
markets, including PRC, reported a slower pace of developments. The rebound of U.S. economy
remained as moderate. The depreciation of Yen and customers' response to the continued lower
of cotton price affected the sales demand for the Group. The inflation of labor cost in the PRC
and stringent government’s requirements also contributed to a difficult operating environment
faced by the Group.

Correspondingly the Group has recorded turnover of HK$6,906.9 million for the 2015 Financial
Year, which shows a decrease of 7% over previous year. With much appreciation of the
teamwork of staff and support from our business partners, the Group's sales volume decreased
slightly by 1.1% at 184.9 million pounds, compared to 186.9 million pounds of the last financial
year. The Group managed to record the net profit attributable to shareholders amounted to
HKS$1,074.8 million (2014: HKS1,116.8 million).

The Board has proposed a final dividend of HK40 cents per share. Together with the interim
dividend of HK40 cents per share declared in November 2014, the total dividend for the 2015
Financial Year will be HK80 cents per share.

BUSINESS OVERVIEW AND OUTLOOK

The global economy shall remain uncertain for some time. Fortunately, the U.S. market will
continue its way to rebound. The business sentiment for the Group's important Japanese
customers will become more positive in the year ahead. The sales demand from customers shall
improve in view of the relatively stable price of cotton.

Some of the adverse factors for the Group's operating environment will continue, including the
inflation of labor cost in the PRC, the stringent PRC government's regulations and requirements
for environmental protection. In order to secure the sustainable development to the Group,
our core competitiveness in terms of advanced production technology, and our innovative
capability of doing business is the key. The accredit by the PRC government as a “High and
New-Tech enterprises” for the Group, and my honour of being elected as “2014 Innovative
Man of the Year in Textile Industry” by China National Textile and Apparel Council are the
recognitions of the Group’s efforts and investments. Furthermore, the grant of “Best Innovative
Energy-saving Technology Implementation Award” by Natural Resources Defenses Council
from US.A. and World Bank Group represents the international accredit toward the Group's
achievements.
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BUSINESS OVERVIEW AND OUTLOOK (Cont'd)

International manufacturing layout is another strategy for the sustainable development for the
Group. The Group will spend continuous efforts to consolidate its establishment in Vietnam. Our
continuous business expansion in Vietnam is in-line with the Group's long-term strategy which
is dedicated for the growth of profitability.

With the help of our dedicated team with innovative capabilities, we are optimistic of the
prospect of the Group. | would like to share my recent joy hereby with you for the Company
being selected as a constituent of the Hang Seng High Dividend Yield Index (“HSHDYI"),
effective from 8 June 2015.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to express my sincere appreciation to our customers,
business partners, suppliers, stakeholders and bankers for their continuous support to the
Group during the period. | sincerely hope our employees will be able to develop together with
the Group, enjoy their balanced life, and realise their potential in the Group.

I'would also thank our shareholders for their kind support and confidence in the Group during
the past year.

On behalf of the Board

Wan Wai Loi
CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong, 25 June 2015
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEERED N

BUSINESS REVIEW

OVERVIEW

For the year under review, the world economy continued to be uncertain. Despite
repeated stimulus policy by Japanese government, the development prospect of
Japanese market was still mild. China has recorded below-target growth rate and has
declared to enter into “new normal”economic development phase with relatively slower
development rate. European developed countries have experienced diverse recovery
paces across different countries. Fortunately the US. market showed the signs of
rebound, however, the growth momentum was still moderate. All these challenges led to
a tough time to the textile industry since the product demands remained relatively weak.

Facing the continuing drop of cotton price during the year, the customers adopted the
wait-and-see attitudes last year. The depreciation of Yen also added the pressure on
average selling price for the fabric sold to Japanese customers. Accordingly, the Group's
revenue decreased by 7% to HK$6,906.9 million for the year ended 31 March 2015 (2014:
HK$7,423.5 million). The Group's sales volume slightly decreased by 1.1% at 184.9 million
pounds for the year ended 31 March 2015 (2014: 186.9 million pounds) while the average
selling price decreased by 6% at HK$37.35 (2014: HK$39.72).

The Group's gross profit for the year ended 31 March 2015 was lower than that of
previous year mainly because of the drastic inflation of labor costs in the PRC and
higher fixed cost absorption rate due to sales value dropped. Gross profit decreased
correspondingly to HK$1,177.9 million (2014: HK$1,361.4 million) with gross profit margin
decreased from 18.3% a year ago to 17.1%.

With the help of its continuous adoption of advanced technology, proactive cost saving
efforts and improvement in interest income, the Group managed to offset some rising
pressure of operation costs. During the year under review, general and administration
expenses decreased to HK$94.6 million (2014: HK$130.2 million). Finance incomes
increased to HKS$19.5 million (2014: HKS8.3 million) while tax expenses decreased to
HK$150 million (2014: HK$196.8 million). With the gain on disposal of interest in joint
ventures of HK$29.3 million and reversal of provision for impairment of interest in
associates of HK$33.2 million, the Group maintained a net profit margin at 15.6% slightly
higher than that in previous year. Profit for the year decreased to HK$1,069.7 million
(2014: HKS1,114.4 million).

With our strong capability in technological and innovative products, the Group
maintained excellent relationship with a large portfolio of renowned international
brands. The top five customers and brand owners accounted for approximately 61.3%
and 72%, respectively, of the Group's revenue during the year under review, versus 65.4%
and 72.5% of the previous year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW (Cont'd)

ENVIRONMENTAL REPORTING AND SOCIAL REPORTING

For the year under review, the Group's total commitment in energy saving and green
manufacturing has been accredited by different governments and industrial associations
in the PRC as well as in Hong Kong:

"2014 Chinese Dyeing and Printing Enterprise Top 20" granted by China Dyeing and
Printing Association;

Elected as“2014 Star of the Year in Fabric Industry” granted by China National Textile
and Apparel Council;

Certified as one of the 2014 High and New-Tech Enterprises by Guangdong Provincial
Department of Science and Technology;

“2014 Chinese Textile and Apparel Industry Brand Value Top 50" jointly accredited
by China National Textile and Apparel Council & China National Institute of
Standardization.

“2013/2014 Hang Seng Pan Pearl River Delta Environmental Award - Bronze Award”
by Federation of Hong Kong Industries.

Furthermore, the Group's energy saving achievement also received international
recognition. Natural Resources Defense Council headquartered in U.S.A. and World Bank
Group jointly accredited the Group with top honor of “Best Energy and Water Saving
Efficiency Award”, and “Best Innovative Energy-Saving Technology Implementation
Award".

To honor the Group's impressive achievements, the Group’s Chairman Mr. Wan Wai Loi
was elected as “2014 Innovative Man of the Year in Textile Industry” by China National
Textile and Apparel Council.

INFRASTRUCTURE AND LONG TERM DEVELOPMENT

The building of manufacturing facilities in Vietnam is one of our important strategies
decided by the Board. The Group has invested enormous efforts and resources to the
Vietnam project despite lots of difficulties encountered. The trial production of the
Vietnam JV factory was postponed to June 2015 from March 2015 because of delay
of installation of boilers. Recently more and more textile enterprises emphasized the
importance of setting up manufacturing bases in Vietnam. This consensus in the
textile industry in turn supports the direction of our long-term development strategy
in Vietnam.

Our advanced operation technology and environmental protection facilities form part of
our core competitiveness. We are undergoing a series of operational equipment upgrades
in our Panyu factory, including application of industrial robots and advancement of water
treatment facilities and power generation plant. All these investments will contribute to
the benefits of the Group in the future.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
ERENRED N

FINANCIAL REVIEW

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL INFORMATION

As at 31 March 2015, the Group had total cash and bank balances of HK$2,025.4 million
(2014: HK$1,776.3 million), including HK$511.9 million, the equivalent of HK$780.0 million
in USS, the equivalent of HK$731.2 million in Renminbi and the equivalent of HK$2.3
million in other currencies. The cash and bank balances and time deposits are to finance
the Group’s working capital and capital expenditure plans.

The Group had bank loans of HK$987.9 million (2014: Nil), and a shareholder’s loan of
HKS$144.4 million (2014: HK$47.5 million) contributed by our joint venture partner to
our Vietnam subsidiary. The shareholder’s loan is of equity nature and is unlikely to be
repaid within one year.

For the 2015 Financial Year, the Group's total assets amounted to HK$5,727.2 million
(2014: HKS$5,353.4 million), representing an increase of 7%. Non-current assets and
current assets were HK$1,760.2 million and HK$3,966.9 million, respectively. The above
assets were financed by current liabilities of HK$2,076.2 million, non-current liabilities of
HK$156.6 million, and equity attributable to shareholders of HK$3,496.7 million.

As at 31 March 2015, the current ratio (which is calculated on the basis of current assets
over current liabilities) was 1.9 (2014: 3.0). The gearing ratio, being the ratio of total
interest bearing debt to total equity, was 29.6% (2014: 1.4%). As at 31 March 2015, the
Group was in a net cash position of HK$893.1 million (2014: HK$1,728.8 million).

The Group adopted cautious measures and fine-tuned its capital expenditure in response
to the market demand. During the year under review, total capital expenditure increased
58% to HK$382.6 million (2014: HK$242.2 million), which was mainly used to purchase
plant and machinery, construction projects of Panyu plant and Vietnam Plant.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various currency exposures,
primarily with respect to the US dollar and Renminbi. The Group manages its foreign
exchange risks by performing regular review and monitoring its foreign exchange
exposure. The Group hedges against the exposure and reduce the risk involved as
appropriate.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 March 2015, the Group did not have assets pledged for the bank loans (2014:
Nil).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Cont'd)

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 March 2015, the Group had 5,084 full-time employees (2014: 4,741). There is
no significant change in the Group's remuneration policy. The Group's remuneration
package for its employees includes salary, bonuses, allowances and retirement benefits,
based on employee’s performance, skills and knowledge. The Group will continue to
provide regular training and competitive remuneration packages to its staff. The Group
also provides additional benefits to its employees, such as subsidized accommodation
and meals for workers at the production facilities, and accident and medical insurance.

The Group has adopted a Share Option Scheme. Pursuant to the scheme, the Company
has granted options to eligible employees.

DIVIDENDS

The Board proposed to pay a final dividend of HK40 cents (2014: HK40 cents) per share,
and did not propose final special dividend (2014: HK25 cents) per share for the 2015
Financial Year, subject to the approval of the shareholders at the forthcoming AGM.
Together with an interim dividend of HK40 cents (2014: HK40 cents) per share, the total
dividend for the 2015 Financial Year amount to HK80 cents (2014: HK105 cents, including
HK25 cents final special dividend) per share.

FUTURE PROSPECTS AND STRATEGIES

The business environment shall remain full of challenges for some time. The EU has
recently terminated the Generalized System of Preferences ("GSP”) status to Chinese
textile products. For emerging markets, the growth will continue to slow down.
Fortunately the textile industry shall have a more positive environment as the U.S.
economy continues to show sign of improvements. With the effect of lower cotton
price starting to show positive sentiments, product demands shall be increased from
the customers including Japanese giant retail chains. The ease of local climate anomalies
may also help to improve the customer orders.

In view of Vietnam’s cost advantage over the PRC, and the prospect associated with the
recent signing of the “Trans-Pacific Strategic Economic Partnership Agreement” (“TPP") by
Vietnam. Vietnam is expected to remain as the key target country for textiles industry’s
overseas expansion. The Group will continue its existing plan to set up manufacturing
base in Vietnam. This overseas expansion will bring improved profitability and secured
labor supplies to the Group as a whole. Furthermore, the international industrial layout
will provide flexibility to the Group when facing different treatments by different trading
countries.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
ERENRED N

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Cont'd)

FUTURE PROSPECTS AND STRATEGIES (Cont'd)

We will keep on enhancing our operational efficiency, leveraging on our advanced
production technologies and Research & Development capabilities. The self-
improvements in green manufacturing provide the improved competitive advantages
to Panyu factory, not only in terms of compliance with stringent PRC government’s
regulations and restrictions, but also reduce the energy consumption by the
manufacturing mills. We believe that environmental protection measurements will
ultimately help provide sustainable developments to the Group as whole.

The Group will continue its investments and researches into the production automation,
in view of the continued shortage of labor supplies in the PRC and inflation of labor
costs. Leveraging on the Group's strong Research & Development capabilities, the
Group is confident that these investments will ultimately bring enormous returns to
the shareholders as a whole.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. WAN Wai Loi, aged 65, is an executive Director and Chairman and a founder of the
Group. Mr. Wan was appointed as the Chief Executive Officer with effect from 1 July
2015. Mr. Wan is responsible for production of the products and the formulation of the
overall corporate direction and business strategies of the Group. Mr. Wan has over 42
years of experience in the textile industry. He obtained a Bachelor of Science Degree in
Chemical Engineering from Taiwan National Cheng Kung University. Mr. Wan joined the
Group in 1997 and was appointed as a Director in 2004. He is also a director of various
subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. TSANG Kang Po, aged 64, is an executive Director and the Vice Chairman and
a founder of the Group. Mr. Tsang is responsible for sales and marketing and the
formulation of the overall corporate direction and business strategies for the Group.
Mr. Tsang has over 36 years of experience in the textile industry. Mr. Tsang obtained
a MBA degree from The Open University of Hong Kong and a Master of Science in
Business Economics from The Chinese University of Hong Kong. Mr. Tsang joined the
Group in 1997 and was appointed as a Director in 2004. He is also a director of various
subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. LAM Wing Tak, aged 64, is an executive Director and the Chief Executive Officer
of the Group. Mr. Lam is responsible for sales and marketing and the formulation of
the overall corporate direction and business strategies for the Group. Mr. Lam has over
40 years of experience in the textile industry. Mr. Lam obtained a MBA degree from
The University of Macau and a Bachelor of Business Administration from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong. Mr. Lam is a Vice Chairman of Board of Trustee of New Asia
College and Honorary Fellow of The Chinese University of Hong Kong. Mr. Lam joined
the Group in 1998 and was appointed as a Director in 2004. He is also a director of
various subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Lam has resigned as Chief Executive Director, and
re-designated as non-executive director effective from 1 July 2015.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. CHOI Kin Chung, aged 79, is a non-executive Director and a founder of the Group.
Mr. Choi co-founded our Group in 1997 and has been the chairman of the Group since
its inception until 2005. Mr. Choi is the emeritus chairman of the Company and is a
director of several subsidiaries of the Group. He has approximately 47 years of experience
in the textile industry. Mr. Choi was educated in ZEFRIE T K& » ZFEE K (School of
Architecture, South China University of Technology) and is a Honorary Professor of
the University. He is also a Honorary Citizen of Guangzhou City and Jiangmen City. Mr.
Choi has been awarded A EI#H45%7T 4% & B3t 2 (China Knitting Industry Lifetime
Achievement Award) by # Bt 4% T 2153 € 500 /52 F€ (4th Council of the China
Knitting Industry Association) in 2010. Mr. Choi was appointed as a Director in 2004.

Mr. IP Ping Im, aged 78, is a non-executive Director. He is a co-founder and senior
partner of our Group. Mr. Ip has over 38 years of experience in the textile industry. Mr.
Ip was appointed as a Director in 2004. He is also a director of several subsidiaries of
the Group.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EEREREEAREHN

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR (Cont'd)

Mr. LAU Yiu Tong, aged 67, is a non-executive Director. Mr. Lau has over 38 years of
experience in the textile industry. Mr. Lau holds a Higher Diploma in Textile Technology
from the Hong Kong Technical College. He is a member of the General Committee of
Federation of Hong Kong Industries. Mr. Lau was appointed as a non-executive Director
in 2007. He is also a director of several subsidiaries of the Group.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. CHAN Yue Kwong, Michael, aged 63, is an independent non-executive Director. He
is currently the chairman of Cafe de Coral Holdings Limited, a Hong Kong listed company
which he joined in 1984, and has considerable experience in planning and management.
Mr. Chan is also an independent non-executive director of Starlite Holdings Limited since
1993, Kingboard Laminates Holdings Limited since 2006 and Tse Sui Luen Jewellery
(International) Limited since 2010 and a non-executive director of Tao Heung Holdings
Limited in 2007, all four companies are listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange. Mr. Chan holds a Bachelor of Arts, a Master degree in City Planning
from the University of Manitoba, Canada, an Honorary Doctorate Degree in Business
Administration and is also bestowed as Honorary Fellow from Lingnan University. He is
also a member of the Political Consultative Committee of Nanshan District, Shenzhen
in the People’s Republic of China. He is currently the general committee member of
the Employers’ Federation of Hong Kong, the Adviser of the Quality Tourism Services
Association, a full member of the Canadian and the Hong Kong Institute of Planners,
a Fellow of the Chartered Institute of Marketing, as well as being appointed by the
HKSAR Government as a member of the Business Facilitation Advisory Committee and a
member of the Task Force on Promotion of Vocational Education. He is also the Honorary
Chairman of the Hong Kong Institute of Marketing and the chairman of the Business
Enterprise Management Centre of the Hong Kong Management Association. Mr. Chan
was appointed as an independent non-executive Director in 2007.

Mr. NG Ching Wah, aged 66, is an independent non-executive Director. Mr. Ng has over
28 years of senior management experience in the telecommunications industry. Mr. Ng
was a director and a member of the executive committee for Advanced Info Service
Public Company Limited, a Thailand listed company. He was an independent director
of China Digital TV Holding Co. Ltd., a New York Stock Exchange listed company and
a non-executive director of HKC International Holdings Limited, a Hong Kong listed
company. He was the chief executive officer of Hong Kong CSL Limited. He was the chief
executive officer of SmarTone Telecommunications Holdings Limited, a Hong Kong listed
company and the President of PCCW Mobility Services Limited. Mr. Ng is the Honorary
Advisor of the Communications Association of Hong Kong and is the appointed member
of Communications Authority, an independent statutory body established under the
Communications Authority Ordinance in April 2012. Mr. Ng was a member of the
Digital 21 Strategy Advisory Committee (D21SAC). Mr. Ng graduated from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong in 1975, with a Bachelor of Business and Administration. Mr.
Ng was appointed as an independent non-executive Director in 2007.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Cont'd)

Mr. SZE Kwok Wing, Nigel, aged 58, is an independent non-executive Director.
Mr. Sze has senior management experience in the private and investment banking
industry serving high net worth clients and institutions. He is the currently managing
director, head of China and Hong Kong. He was the chief executive officer of EFG Asset
Management (Hong Kong) Limited for Asia Pacific Region; the managing director, head
of investment of Citi Wealth Management for Asia Pacific region; the chief executive
officer of Asia-Pacific for International Private Bank, Barclays Wealth and an executive
director in the private clients division at Morgan Stanley Asia Limited, Hong Kong. Mr. Sze
holds a Master of Business from the University of Newcastle, Australia. He is a Fellow of
CPA Australia. Mr. Sze was appointed as an independent non-executive Director in 2007.

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

Mr. Tou Kit Vai, aged 52, joined the Group in 2013 and appointed as CFO on 1st
April 2014. Mr. Tou is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, he was an
executive director of a HK listed company during 2007-2012 and he has extensive
experiences in factory operations, financial management, project management and
ERP System.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chou Yung, aged 45, joined the Group in October 2014 as Company Secretary. Mr.
Chou is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, he was
a company secretary of a HK listed company during 2007-2011 and he has extensive
experiences in financial management, corporate governance and administration.

PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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DIRECTORS' REPORT
ESREAE

The Board is pleased to present the annual report together with the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Company and the Group for the 2015 Financial Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The Group is principally engaged
in the manufacturing and trading of textile products.

An analysis of the performance of the Group for the 2015 Financial Year by geographical
location of business operation is set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries at 31 March 2015 are set
out in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the 2015 Financial Year are set out in the consolidated
income statement on page 43 of this annual report.

An interim dividend of HK40 cents (2014: HK40 cents) per share and no interim special
dividend (2014: Nil) per share was paid on 30 December 2014 to shareholders. The Board
has recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK40 cents (2014: HK40 cents)
per share and has not recommended a special final dividend (2014: 25 cents). Subject
to the approval of the shareholders at the forthcoming AGM, the final dividend of HK40
cents will be paid on 2 September 2015 to shareholders whose names appear on the
Register of Members of the Company on 24 August 2015.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Register of the Members of the Company will be closed from 11 August 2015 to
14 August 2015 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of determining the identity of
members who are entitled to attend and vote at the AGM, during which period no
transfer of shares of the Company will be registered. In order to qualify for attending the
AGM, all transfers accompanied by the relevant share certificates, must be lodged with
the Company’s Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17/F, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on 10 August 2015.

The Register of the Members of the Company will be closed from 20 August 2015 to
24 August 2015 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of determining the identity of
members who are entitled to the final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2015, during
which period no transfer of shares of the Company will be registered. In order to qualify
for the final dividend, all transfers accompanied by the relevant share certificates, must
be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar, Computershare Hong
Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17/F, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on 19 August 2015.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the issued share capital of the Company during the 2015
Financial Year are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company during
the 2015 Financial Year are set out in note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2015, the distributable reserves of the Company amounted to
approximately HK$2,301 million (2014: HK$2,480 million), comprising the share premium,
share-based reserve and the retained earnings of the Company.

Under the Companies Law, Cap.22 of the Cayman Islands, in addition to the retained
earnings of the Company, the share premium and capital reserves of the Company are
also available for distribution to shareholders provided that the Company will be able to
pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business immediately following
the date on which any such distribution is proposed to be paid.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles, or the law of Cayman
Islands, being the jurisdiction in which the Company is incorporated under which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Company was entered into or existed during the
2015 Financial Year.

DONATIONS

During the 2015 Financial Year, the Group made charitable and other donation totalling
approximately HK$84,000 (2014: HK$38,000).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Expenditure of approximately HK$383 million (2014: HK$242 million) was incurred during
the 2015 Financial Year primarily to expand the production capacity of the Group.

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group are set out in
note 7 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS'REPORT
ESZREE

CAPITALISED INTERESTS

During the 2015 Financial Year, no interest had been capitalised (2014:Nil).

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any
of the Company’s shares during the 2015 Financial Year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the 2015 Financial Year, sales to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for
approximately 61.4% of the Group's total sales and sales to the Group's largest customer
included therein amounted to approximately 35.3%. Purchases from the Group’s five
largest suppliers accounted for approximately 70.2% of the Group's total purchases and
purchase from the Group’s largest supplier included therein amounted to approximately
47.5%.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder of the Company (which to the

knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued shares) had
any interests in the Group's five largest customers or suppliers noted above.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the consolidated results and consolidated balance sheet of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on page 127 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the 2015 Financial Year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. WAN Wai Loi (Chairman)

Mr. TSANG Kang Po (Vice Chairman)

Mr. LAM Wing Tak (Chief Executive Officer, till T July 2015,
and re-designated as non-executive director)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. CHOI Kin Chung

Mr. IP Ping Im

Mr. LAU Yiu Tong

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. CHAN Yue Kwong, Michael

Mr. NG Ching Wah

Mr. SZE Kwok Wing, Nigel

Pursuant to article 130 of the Articles, at every AGM one-third of the Directors for the
time being, or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number
nearest to, but not less than, one-third, shall retire from office by rotation provided
that every Director (including those appointed for a specific term) shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

Accordingly, Mr. Lam Wing Tak, Mr. Ip Ping Im, Mr. Sze Kwok Wing, Nigel will retire by
rotation from the Board at the forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, will offer themselves
for re-election as Directors.

PROFILES OF DIRECTORS

Profiles of the Directors are set out on pages 11 to 13 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors had entered into a service agreement with the Company
for an initial term of two years. Each service agreement will continue thereafter until
terminated by either party by giving to the other party at least six months’ prior notice
in writing.

Each of the non-executive and independent non-executive Directors had been
appointed for an initial term of two years with effect from 1 May 2007. The term of the
appointment has been extended thereafter.
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DIRECTORS'REPORT
ESZREE

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS (Cont'd)

All Directors are subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the Articles and
the Listing Rules.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM of the Company
has a service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not terminable
by the Group within one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS

The remuneration of the Directors are reviewed and determined by the Remuneration
Committee on the basis of the relevant Director’s experience, responsibility and the time
devoted to the business of the Group.

Details of the emoluments of every Director for the 2015 Financial Year is set out in note
25 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

There was no contract of significance in relation to the business of the Group to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries, was a party and in which a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the 2015 Financial Year or
at any time during the 2015 Financial Year.

COMPETING INTEREST

None of Directors had, either directly or indirectly, an interest in a business which causes
or may cause any significant competition with the business of the Group and any other
conflicts of interest which any such person has or may have with the Group.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to the shareholders
of the Company by reason of their holdings of the Shares.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the 2015 Financial Year was the Company, its holding companies, or
any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in,
or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2015, the interests and short positions of the Directors and chief

IN SHARES AND

executives of the Company in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO; or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code were as follows:

LONG POSITIONS IN SHARES
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RARRSKEEMEREE (EERLEFEHFR
HEEFIEXVED) kG - HERG REFH
o BEAREES KBRS 21MEET
GFEMELMAT SR RIZETRENS
RARKRERFHER AT

KABRBZHER

Number of issued Shares held and nature of interest

RERTALAROHE RESNEE

Corporate

Interests

Personal Family (interests of

Interests Interests a controlled

(beneficial (interests  corporation)

Name of Directors/ owner) of spouse) EEEE

Chief Executives B A= REBERE (RAEEES

BE THARGRE (BEZ#EAAN) (REzER) BRzER)

Ip Ping Im - 2,000,000 403,394,000

B (Note 1)

(FiFaET)

Lam Wing Tak 14,566,000 1,087,000 -
RER{E

Lau Yiu Tong 52,501,000 - -
Ik

Tsang Kang Po 1,988,000 2,501,000 100,000,000

B (Note 3)

(FF5E3)

Wan Wai Loi 15,497,000 1,030,000 -
FEK

Approximate

percentage

of issued

share capital

Trusts and of the

similar Company

interests Total RAAF]

Btk Interests BEETRAZ

HOER B BABE D

- 405,394,000 28.03%

100,000,000 115,653,000 8.00%
(Note 2)
(MF7E2)

- 52,501,000 3.63%

- 104,489,000 7.22%

56,304,000 72,831,000 5.04%
(Note 4)
(Bt 5%4)
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ESZREE

DIRECTORS" INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (Cont'd)

LONG POSITIONS IN SHARES (Cont'd)
Notes:

1. These Shares are directly held by Far East Asia Limited, whose issued share capital is
wholly-owned by Mr. Ip Ping Im.

2. These Shares are directly held by Fifth Element Enterprises Limited, whose issued share
capital is wholly-owned by BLWT Company Limited. The issued share capital of BLWT
Company Limited is wholly-owned by HSBC International Trustee Limited, the trustee of
the family trust of Mr. Lam Wing Tak. For the purpose of the SFO, Mr. Lam Wing Tak is the
founder of the family trust.

3. These Shares are directly held by Top Strong Holdings Limited, whose issued share capital
is 50% owned by Mr. Tsang Kang Po and 50% owned by the spouse of Mr. Tsang Kang Po.

4. These Shares are directly held by Hollywood Pacific Limited, whose issued share capital is
50% owned by Mr. Wan Wai Loi and 50% owned by WWL Assets Limited. The issued share
capital of WWL Assets Limited is wholly- owned by HSBC International Trustee Limited,
the trustee of the family trust of Mr. Wan Wai Loi. For the purpose of the SFO, Mr. Wan
Wai Loi is the founder of the family trust.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2015, none of the Directors or chief executive of
the Company, had any interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept under section 352
of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code.

At no time during the 2015 Financial Year were the rights to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of Shares in the Company granted to any directors or their respective
spouse or minor children, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the
Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS” AND OTHER PERSONS' INTERESTS AND

SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2015, the following persons (other than a Director or chief executive of
the Company) had interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to

Section 336 of the SFO:

LONG POSITIONS IN SHARES

Name of shareholders

IRERERE

Chiu Bo Lan
HEE

WWL Assets Limited

Hollywood Pacific Limited

Lam Wai Yee
MEE

Far East Asia Limited

Wong Bik Ha

= IEEFE
BHEER

BLWT Company Limited

DIRECTORS' REPORT

ESREE

TERRRAEMATREATRONERE

Rip 2@k

SR A
KRB

2015634318 - REBEAQARRIEFRLRPE
&G E336IEMEFE 2 B ML - LT
AL (EBRARETTHREERIN) RAQE
RAD AR RARR 1D P A 2 ik B

KABRBZHER

Number of issued Shares held and nature of interest

RERTALAROHE RESNEE

Personal
Interests
(beneficial
owner)

BA S
(BHEERAA)

1,030,000

2,000,000

403,394,000
(Note 4)
(B sE4)

1,087,000

Family
Interests
(interests

of spouse)
KBRS
(BB zHz)

15,497,000
(Note 1)
(FsED)

403,394,000
(Note 3)
(MH3E3)

14,566,000
(Note 5)
(MH3E5)

Corporate
Interests
(interests of
a controlled
corporation)
A B
(R E =
BREoER)

Trusts and
similar
interests
fErE R
Bl s

56,304,000
(Note 2)
(MF7%2)

56,304,000
(Note 2)
(MF7E2)

56,304,000
(Note 2)
(MH7E2)

100,000,000
(Note 6)
(Ht3Ee)

100,000,000
(Note 6)
(Mt5Ee)

Total
Interests

A

72,831,000

56,304,000

56,304,000

405,394,000

403,394,000

115,653,000

100,000,000

Approximate
percentage
of issued
share capital
of the
Company
RARQFE
BEBRTREZ
BRBEDL

5.04%

3.89%

3.89%

28.03%

27.89%

8.00%

6.91%
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND FEREREMALRAAARAHIAE

SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (Cont'd) R zEERAE ()
LONG POSITIONS IN SHARES (Cont’d) RKATRBziFE (&)

Number of issued Shares held and nature of interest

REBRTARRAROHME RERMEE
Approximate
Corporate percentage
Interests of issued
Personal Family (interests of share capital
Interests Interests a controlled Trusts and of the
(beneficial (interests corporation) similar Company
owner) of spouse) EEER interests Total RAEAT
Name of shareholders fBA R RXEER (FA S R4 I FER Interests BETRAZ
RER &R (BRBEAAN) (RBE2ER) B 2ER) BoER A BRE DL
Fifth Element Enterprises Limited - - - 100,000,000 100,000,000 6.91%
(Note 6)
(Fff %)
HSBC International Trustee Limited - - - 156,304.000 156,304,000 10.80%
(Notes 2 & 6)
(Fft 3E27F06)
Wong Mei Ling 2,501,000 1,988,000 100,000,000 - 104,489,000 7.22%
BER (Note 7) (Note 8)
(Pl 3E7) (P 5E8)
Top Strong Holdings Limited 100,000,000 - - - 100,000,000 6.91%
(Note 8)
(Ff3Ee)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS” AND OTHER PERSONS' INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (Cont'd)

LONG POSITIONS IN SHARES (Cont'd)
Notes:

1.

Ms. Chiu Bo Lan is the spouse of Mr. Wan Wai Loi, a Director.

2. Hollywood Pacific Limited is 50% owned by Mr. Wan Wai Loi and 50% owned by WWL
Assets Limited. WWL Assets Limited is wholly-owned by HSBC International Trustee
Limited, the trustee of the family trust of Mr. Wan Wai Loi. For the purpose of the SFO, Mr.
Wan Wai Loi is the founder of the family trust.

3. Ms. Lam Wai Yee is the spouse of Mr. Ip Ping Im, a Director.

4. Far East Asia Limited is wholly-owned by Mr. Ip Ping Im, a Director.

5. Ms. Wong Bik Ha is the spouse of Mr. Lam Wing Tak, a Director.

6. Fifth Element Enterprises Limited is wholly-owned by BLWT Company Limited. BLWT
Company Limited is wholly-owned by HSBC International Trustee Limited, the trustee of
the family trust of Mr. Lam Wing Tak. For the purpose of the SFO, Mr. Lam Wing Tak is the
founder of the family trust.

7. Ms.Wong Mei Ling is the spouse of Mr. Tsang Kang Po, a Director.

8. Top Strong Holdings Limited is 50% owned by Mr. Tsang Kang Po and 50% owned by Ms.

Wong Mei Ling, the spouse of Mr. Tsang Kang Po.

LONG POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF ANY OTHER MEMBER
IN THE GROUP
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Rtz EER AR (8)

AARARGZFR (8)
et

1. BERZTIRESFEREEZERRB -

2. FEIREAEBWWL Assets Limited B A
Hollywood Pacific Limited,Z 50%4& s © HSBC
International Trustee Limited BF SRR 4L Z
RiREEZETEA - 2EEAWWL Assets
LimitedZ # % - ABEH R BAEEAIME -
FEREERBREETLZEIIFA °

3. MEBEXIREZEMUSLEZES -

4. Far East Asia Limited & BEMK L E 2B
%5 -

5. BEBAIREEMARBELZES -

6. Fifth Element Enterprises LimitedH#
BLWT Company Limited%® 1 # A& ° HSBC
International Trustee Limited #k 48 12 %
EZRERFEFRZEFRA S 2EZEABLWT
Company LimitedZ # % © 538 5 LB §
Bl E - MERIEEERKIEELZEIPA -

7. BRRALIREFGEREE RS -

8. ERERAERARBEERZIHRIES
Top Strong Holdings Limited 2 50%#£ %5 °

RESEEAEMEREAR 2RO REBR
BDRZER

Approximate

percentage
of issued
share capital
Name of members Name of Number of Nature of RARTH
of the Group substantial shareholders Notes interest issued shares CERITRA
AEBEE DR BB FTERRER MizE FERmME R5EE ZBHNBE DL
PT Sri Lanka Brandix Lanka Limited 1 Beneficial owner 197,000,976 29.81%
PTHTERIR BaERA
PCGT Limited Crystal Peak International 2&3  Beneficial owner 975,000 25.00%
Limited BERBEAA
B B PR B BR A A
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS” AND OTHER PERSONS’" INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (Cont'd)

LONG POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF ANY OTHER MEMBER

IN THE GROUP (Cont'd)
Notes:

1. PT SriLanka is owned as to 39.65% by Pacific Textured Jersey Holdings Ltd., a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, and 29.81% by Brandix Lanka Limited.

2. PCGT Limited is owned as to 75% by Pacific GT Limited and 25% by Crystal Peak
International Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Crystal International Limited.

3. Pacific GT Limited is owned as to 95% by Product Champion Limited, a wholly- owned
subsidiary of the Company, and 2.5% by GSI Trading Hong Kong Limited and 2.5% by
Toray Industries (H.K.) Limited.

Save as disclosed above, so far as is known to any Director or chief executive of the
Company, as at 31 March 2015, no other person had an interest or short position in the
Shares or underlying Shares of the Company that was required to be kept pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to the written resolutions of shareholders of the Company passed on 27
April 2007, the Company adopted the Share Option scheme subject to the terms and
conditions therein. Refer to an announcement of 11 October 2013 for grant of 10,000,000
share options of the Company (the “2nd Grant”) and the previous grant of 22,820,000 on
18 July 2007 (the “1st Grant”), the options shall expire on 10 October 2023 and 17 July
2017 respectively. The closing price of the share of the Company immediately before
the dates of the 1st Grant and the 2nd Grant were HK$4.86 and HK$10.06 per share
respectively.

A. SUMMARY OF THE SHARE OPTION SCHEME

1. Purpose
The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide the Company with a
flexible means of retaining, incentivising, rewarding, remunerating, compensating
and/or providing benefits to Eligible Persons (as defined in paragraph 2 below).

2. Participants
The Board may grant options to any “Eligible Person’, namely an employee,
director or non-executive director (including INED) of any Member of the Group.

“Member of the Group” means the Company, any holding company, subsidiaries
or affiliates of the Company or other companies or associated companies of
the Company which the Board determines will be subject to the Share Option
Scheme.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont'd)

A. SUMMARY OF THE SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont’d)

3. Maximum number of Shares

The total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to
be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other schemes must not
in aggregate exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as at the date of Listing of the
Shares on the Stock Exchange on 18 May 2007 (the “Listing Date”), representing
143,293,600 Shares or 30% of the Shares of the Company in issue from time to
time.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options
granted to each Eligible Person (including exercised and outstanding options)
in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue at the date
of grant of the option.

. Time of exercise of options and duration of Share Option Scheme

(a) General vesting period
The general vesting period for options granted under the Share Option
Scheme is 5 anniversary of grant date unless the Board specifies a different
vesting period under the terms of the offer. The option period will not be
more than 10 years from the date of grant.

An option may be exercised to the extent that it has vested and any
performance conditions or targets set by the Board have been met.

(b) Duration of the Share Option Scheme
The duration of the Share Option Scheme shall be 10 years from the Listing
Date.

6. Exercise price and payment on grant

(a) Exercise price
The exercise price for the Shares under the Share Option Scheme shall be
the price determined by the Board and notified to the option holder which
shall not be less than the higher of:
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont'd)

A. SUMMARY OF THE SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont’d)

6. Exercise price and payment on grant (Cont’d)
(a) Exercise price (Contd)

(i) the average closing price of the Shares for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant of the option as stated in the

Stock Exchange'’s daily quotation sheets;

(i) the closing price of the Shares as stated on the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet of the Shares on the date of grant of the option; and

(iii) the nominal value of the Shares.

(b) Payment on grant

Eligible Persons are not required to pay for the acceptance of an option

granted to them.

7. Remaining life of the Share Option Scheme
The Share Option Scheme will terminate automatically at midnight on the day

immediately before the 10th anniversary of the Listing Date.

B. OPTIONS GRANTED BY THE COMPANY

As at 31 March 2015, all options under the 1st Grant were fully exercised, options
under the 2nd Grant to subscribe for an aggregate of 9,900,000 Shares granted to
eligible full-time employees on 11 October 2013 pursuant to the terms of the Share

Option Scheme remained outstanding, details of which were as follows:

Exercise Price
i
Grantee Date of Grant HK$ Exercisable Period
ABA REAH B (il
Eligible Employees 18/07/2007 (15t Grant =A%) S04 18/07/2010-17/07/2017
REREE
11/10/2013 (nd Grant 5= R E ) 998 11/10/2016-10/10/2023
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont'd)

B. OPTIONS GRANTED BY THE COMPANY (Cont’d)

The fair value of options of the 2nd Grant is approximately at an average of HK$1.85
per share on the basis of binomial model (the “Model"). The significant inputs into
the Model were the closing price of the Share of the Company at the date of grant of
HK$9.98 per share, annual risk-free interest rate of approximately 2.09%, an expected
option life of approximate 10 years, expected volatility of 45% and annual dividend
yield of 9%. HK$3,852,000 amortised fair value of share options for the 2015 Financial
Year was charged to the consolidated income statement (2014: HKS$1,834,000).

The Model was developed for use in estimating fair value of traded options that
are fully transferable. The Model requires input of highly subjective assumptions,
including the expected stock price volatility. Since the Company's share options
have characteristics significantly different from those of traded options, and because
change in the subjective input assumptions can materially affect the fair value
estimate, the Model does not necessarily provide a reliable measure of the fair value
of the share options.

Save as disclosed above, no option had been granted to the Directors, chief
executive or substantial shareholders of the Company or their respective associates
under the Share Option Scheme.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the 2015 Financial Year, the Group had the following fully-exempted continuing
connected transactions: (1) Sale and Purchase of Knitted Fabric to Crystal Group; and
(2) Sale of Products to HC Companies.

(1) SALE AND PURCHASE OF KNITTED FABRIC TO CRYSTAL GROUP
The Group sells and purchases knitted fabrics to and from Crystal International
Limited ("Crystal”) together with its subsidiaries (“Crystal Group”) and associates.
Crystal is a substantial shareholder of PCGT Limited, an indirect non-wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company. Since PCGT Limited was an insignificant subsidiary of the
Company pursuant to Listing Rule 14A.09, the transactions with the Crystal Group
were fully exempted continuing connected transactions.

PCGT Limited no longer qualifies as an insignificant subsidiary of the Company under
Listing Rule 14A.09. As disclosed in the Company's announcement dated 26 June
2015, on the date of the announcement, the Company and Crystal entered into a
master agreement (the "Master Agreement") in relation to the sale and purchase of
knitted fabric manufactured and owned by the Group to the Crystal Group. As Crystal
is a substantial shareholder of a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and
hence a connected person of the Company at the subsidiary level, transactions
under the Master Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions of
the Company under the Listing Rules. As the Board (including all the independent
non-executive Directors) have confirmed that the transactions under the Master
Agreement are on normal commercial terms and conducted in the ordinary and
usual course of business of the Group, fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Company and the Shareholders as a whole, pursuant to Rule 14A.101 of the Listing
Rules, the transactions under the Master Agreement and the proposed annual caps
for such transactions are subject to the reporting and announcement requirements
but are exempted from the circular, independent financial advice and independent
shareholders' approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

(2) SALE OF PRODUCTS TO HC COMPANIES

The Group sells knitted fabrics to companies in which Mr. Henry Choi has substantial
interest (the "HC Companies”). Mr. Henry Choi, who is the son of Mr. Choi Kin Chung
(@ Director), and hence he and the HC Companies, are regarded as connected
persons of the Company by virtue of Listing Rule 14A.07. Transactions with HC
Companies were on normal commercial terms where all percentage ratios on
an annual basis were less than 0.1%, and were fully exempted under Listing Rule
14A.76(1).

AUDIT COMMITTEE

An audit committee (the "Audit Committee”) was established by the Board with written
terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code contained in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules. The Audit Committee comprises three INEDs, namely Mr. Sze Kwok Wing,
Nigel, Mr. Ng Ching Wah and Mr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael. Mr. Sze Kwok Wing, Nigel is
the chairman of the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee has reviewed the financial
statements of the Group for the 2015 Financial Year and discussed with the management
and the auditor of the Company on the accounting principles and practices adopted by
the Group and internal controls and financial reporting matters.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are set out in the
Corporate Governance Report from pages 29 to 40 of this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, as the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this
annual report, there is sufficient public float of more than 25% of the issued shares of
the Company as required under the Listing Rules.

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

The Group had no significant events after the 2015 Financial Year.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the 2015 Financial Year have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers. A resolution to re-appoint PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditor
of the Company will be proposed for approval by shareholders of the Company at the
forthcoming AGM of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Wan Wai Loi
CHAIRMAN
Hong Kong, 25 June 2015
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The Board is committed to maintaining high standard of corporate governance to
enhance transparency and accountability and to safeguard interests of shareholders of
the Company. The Group reviews corporate governance practices from time to time to
ensure that business activities and decision making processes are properly regulated.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company has complied with the applicable code provisions and certain
recommended best practices set out in the CG Code contained in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules where suitable to the Company so as to enhance the corporate governance
standard of the Company throughout the 2015 Financial Year.

With effect from 1 July 2015, Mr. Wan Wai Loi, the chairman and an executive director,
has been appointed as the chief executive officer, and hence the Company does not
comply with the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code which requires that the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. The Board believes that vesting the roles of the chairman and
the chief executive officer in Mr. Wan provides the Company with strong and consistent
leadership and facilitates the implementation and execution of the Group's business
strategies currently and in the foreseeable future. The Group will nevertheless review
the structure from time to time in light of the prevailing circumstances.

DIRECTORS' SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as
its own code of conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors. Having made
specific enquiries of all Directors, all Directors have confirmed that they had complied
with the Model Code throughout the 2015 Financial Year.

THE BOARD

The overall management of business of the Group is vested to the Board. The Board
is responsible for formulation of strategic, management and financial objectives of
the Group and ensuring that interest of shareholders are protected. Daily operations
and administration of the Group are delegated to the executive Directors and the
management.

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

The Board currently has 9 members consisting of 3 executive Directors, 3 non-executive
Directors and 3 INEDs. Profiles of the Directors are set out on pages 11 to 13 of this
annual report and are available on the website of the Company. There is no financial,
business, family or other material/relevant relationships among Directors. The list of
Directors and their role and function are published on the website of the Stock Exchange
and the Company.

The composition of the Board is well balanced with Directors having sales and marketing
experience and technical knowledge in fabric business, administration and management
experience in the PRC factories, financial and accounting skill is appropriate for effective
decision making, taking into account the nature and scope of business operations and
development of the Group. The Board considers that each of the Non-executive Directors
and INEDs brings his own relevant expertise to the Board.
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THE BOARD (Cont'd)

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD (Cont'd)

As permitted under the Articles, the Company has arranged Directors and Officers
Liability Insurance in respect of any legal actions which may be taken against Directors
and management in execution and discharge of their duties or in relation thereto.

THE BOARD MEETING

The Board meets at least 4 times per year and additional meetings are convened when
deemed necessary by the Board. The schedule of regular meetings for the whole year
has been informed to each Director. The attendance record of the Directors is set out in
the table on page 31 of this annual report.

During the 2015 Financial Year, the Board held 4 meetings to approve interim and final
results announcements, interim report and annual report, to consider dividend policy,
to discuss significant issues and general operation of the Company.

Notices of Board meeting will be served to all the Directors at least 14 days before
the meeting. Notices and agenda of the Board meeting are prepared by the Company
Secretary as delegated by the Chairman. All the Directors are given opportunity to
include any matters which they believe to be appropriate in the agenda of the Board
meetings.

Agenda and relevant information of Board meeting with adequate background
information and supporting analysis are made available to the Directors at least 3 days
before the intended date of the Board meeting. All the Directors are given separate and
independent access to the Company's senior management for further information and
enquiries. The Company Secretary and senior management attends all the meetings
of the Board and Board committees to advise on corporate governance, statutory
compliance and financial matters.

Any material matters that would have conflict of interest between the directors/
substantial shareholders and the Company will be dealt with in the Board meeting.
Pursuant to the Articles, a Director is not entitled to vote on (nor is counted in the
quorum) any resolution of the Board in respect of any contract or arrangement or any
other proposal whatsoever in which he or any of his associates (including any person
who would be deemed to be an "associate” of the Directors under the Listing Rules) has
any material interest, except in certain special circumstances. The chairman of the Board
meeting is required to ensure that each Director is aware of such requirement at the
commencement of each Board meeting and declaration of interest is properly made in
the Board meeting where conflicts of interest arise.
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THE BOARD (Cont'd)

THE BOARD MEETING (Cont'd)

Directors have access to advices and services of the Company Secretary and key officers
of the Company in relation to the Board procedures. Draft minutes of the Board/
Board committee meetings recorded in sufficient details, the matters considered by
participants of such meetings and decisions reached are forwarded to participants for
comments within a reasonable time after the meetings and final versions of minutes of
Board meetings and meetings of Board committee are kept by the Company Secretary,
which are open for inspection by any Directors at any reasonable time on reasonable
notice.

Board members are provided with complete, adequate and timely information to allow
the Directors to fulfill their duties properly. Directors may seek independent professional
advice at the Company's expense, if necessary, with the approval of the Board.

ATTENDANCE RECORD AT THE MEETINGS

The attendance record of each Director at the meetings of the Board, the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and AGM during the
2015 Financial Year are set out as follows:
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Audit Remuneration Nomination
Board Committee Committee Committee AGM

EER EBiZEE FMZEE REZEE RREFAE
Executive Directors BTES
Mr. WAN Wai Loi (Chairman) FEREE (TE) 4/4 N/A N/A N/A /1
Mr. TSANG Kang Po (Vice Chairman) BHEREE (AR 4/4 N/A 11 11 1/1
Mr. LAM Wing Tak (Chief Executive Officer) MBS (THAEH) 4/4 N/A 11 11 01
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Mr. CHOI Kin Chung BERRE 3/4 N/A N/A N/A 1/1
Mr. IP Ping Im Empias 3/4 N/A N/A N/A 11
Mr. LAU Yiu Tong BRRSEE 3/4 N/A N/A N/A 11
INEDs BIEHTES
Mr. CHAN Yue Kwong, Michael Bt 4/4 3/4 11 1/1 1/1
Mr. NG Ching Wah mEERE 4/4 4/4 11 11 11
Mr. SZE Kwok Wing, Nigel MBI & 4/4 4/4 11 1/1 1/1
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company are segregated
and not exercised by the same individual. The Board is headed by the Chairman, Mr. Wan
Wai Loi, with the assistance of the Vice Chairman, Tsang Kang Po and the Chief Executive
Officer is Mr. Lam Wing Tak.

With the support of the Company Secretary, the Chairman ensures all the Directors are
properly briefed on issues arising at the Board meetings and be provided with adequate
information in a timely manner.

INEDS

The Board at all times met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least 3 INEDs with at least one INED possessing appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial management expertise
throughout the 2015 Financial Year.

The Company has received an annual written confirmation from each of the INEDs of
their independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers them to
be independent of the management and free of any relationship that could materially
interfere with the exercise of their independent judgement.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS

The Company and the Board require each Director to keep abreast of his responsibilities
as a Director of the Company and of the business and operating activities and
development of the Company. Every Director is required to devote sufficient time and
involvement in the affairs of the Board and material matters of the Company and to
serve the Board with such degree of care and due diligence given his own expertise,
qualification and professionalism.

Each executive Director is responsible for management of the different functions of
business of the Group.

The non-executive Directors attended the Board meetings and advised their opinion on
business strategy of the Company and reviewed financial and operation performance
of the Group.

The INEDs serve relevant function of bringing independent judgement on issues of
strategic direction, development, performance and risk management of the Group.
The INEDs are all or a majority of members of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee.

All Directors have been updated and briefed relevant changes in legal and regulatory
matters to ensure that they have a proper understanding of the operations and business
of the Company and that they are fully aware of their responsibilities under applicable
laws and regulations. A comprehensive Compliance Manual has been provided to each
Director and has been updated.
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MANAGEMENT FUNCTION

The Articles set out matters which are specifically reserved to the Board for its decision.
Executive Directors normally meet on an informal basis and participate in senior
management meetings on a regular basis to keep abreast of the latest operations
and performance of the Group and to monitor and ensure the management carry out
directions and strategies set by the Board correctly and appropriately.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board should be responsible for performing corporate governance duties as follows:

(@) to develop and review the Company's policies and practices on corporate
governance and make recommendations;

(b) to review and monitor training and continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management;

(c) to review and monitor the Company's policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual
applicable to employees and Directors; and

(e) to review the Company's compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The Board is empowered under the Articles to appoint any person as a Director to fill
a casual vacancy on or as an additional member of the Board. Suitable candidates who
are experienced and competent and able to fulfill fiduciary duties and duties of skill,
care and diligence would be recommended to the Board.

If a shareholder wishes to propose a person for election as a Director at the AGM, the
shareholder can deposit a written notice to that effect at the registered office of the
Company for the attention of the Company Secretary. Procedures for shareholders to
propose a person for election as a director are published on the website of the Company.

Each of the executive Directors was appointed for an initial term of two years and each
service agreement will continue thereafter until terminated by either party by giving to
the other party at least six months' prior notice in writing.

Each of the non-executive Directors (including the INEDs) was appointed for a specific
term of two years. The term of the appointment has been extended thereafter.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS (Cont'd)

All Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and are eligible for re-election pursuant
to the Articles.

Every newly appointed Director has been provided with comprehensive and tailored
induction of business operation of the Group, including a site visit of our factory in China
on the first occasion of his appointment.

Pursuant to the Articles, any Director appointed by the Board either to fill a casual
vacancy or as addition to the Board shall retire and be eligible for re-appointment at
the next following general meeting after appointment.

At every AGM, one-third of the Directors, including the Chairman, shall be subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election by shareholders. The Directors appointed by
the Board who are subject to retirement and re-election as mentioned above shall be
taken into account in calculating the total number of Directors for the time being but
shall not be taken into account in calculating the number of Directors who are to retire
by rotation. All Directors eligible for re-election shall have their biographical details
made available to shareholders to enable them to make an informed decision on their
re-election.

Any appointment, resignation, removal or re-designation of Director shall be timely
disclosed to shareholders by announcement and shall include in such announcement,
reasons given by the Director for his resignation.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The Company from time to time updates
the Directors on the latest development on the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements to ensure their contribution to the Board remains informed
and relevant.
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT (Cont'd)

According to the training record provided by the Directors, a summary of training record
of all Directors during the 2015 Financial Year is as follows:

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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Topics on training covered

PR E R ERE

Corporate Listing Rules and Risk and financial
governance regulatory updates management
tEER LHRAREREN ARG EER
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. WAN Wai Loi FHETEE AB
Mr. TSANG Kang Po DR SE A B
Mr. LAM Wing Tak MREIREAE A B
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Mr. CHOI Kin Chung BERLAE B
Mr. IP Ping Im S g AB
Mr. LAU Yiu Tong BBERSE A, B
INEDs BYFHITES
Mr. CHAN Yue Kwong, Michael PR Y e 4 A B A B
Mr. NG Ching Wah HBELE A B A B
Mr. SZE Kwok Wing, Nigel e [ &8 S A B A, B B

Type of trainings
A. Attending briefings, seminars, webinar or training courses

B. Reading materials

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established 3 main Board Committees, namely, the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee, each chaired by different
INED, to assist the Board for overseeing particular aspects of the Company's affairs.
Board Committees report to the Board of their decisions and recommendations at the
Board meetings.

The revised terms of reference setting out the principles, procedures and arrangements
of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee
have been reviewed by the Board with reference to the CG Code and are published on
the website of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Board Committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties
and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances, at the Company's expenses.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Cont'd)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established on 27 April 2007 with written terms of reference in
compliance with the CG Code. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are reviewing,
overseeing and supervision of the effectiveness of the Group’s financial reporting
process, internal control systems and risk management.

The members of the Audit Committee are Mr. Sze Kwok Wing, Nigel; Mr. Ng Ching Wah
and Mr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael (who are INEDs). Mr. Sze Kwok Wing, Nigel, a Fellow
of CPA Australia, is the chairman of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management in conjunction with the
auditor, the audited annual consolidated financial statements of the Group for the 2015
Financial Year and the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group. The
Annual Report for the 2015 Financial Year has been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee held 4 meetings during 2015 Financial Year. The major work
performed by the Audit Committee in respect of 2015 Financial Year included approving
the terms of engagement (including the remuneration) of the external auditor; reviewing
the unaudited interim financial information and interim results announcement for
the six months ended 30 September 2014; reviewing the audited annual financial
information and final results announcement for 2015 Financial Year; reviewing the work
of the Group's internal audit department, assessing the effectiveness of the Group's
systems of risk management and internal control and reviewing the effectiveness of the
whistleblowing policy and the incidents reported through such channel. The attendance
of the Directors for the Audit Committee meetings is set out in the table on page 31
of this annual report.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the scope and results of the audit and its cost
effectiveness and the independence and objectivity of the Company's auditor.

For 2015 Financial Year, the fees in respect of audit and non-audit services provided by
the Company's auditor were as follows:

BT
SEEIZRTES

Audit Services
Non-audit Services
- Tax consultation services and review
interim financial information

36 Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited 2014 / 2015 Annual Report

— RIS EE R RS R E R h B IS B R

E5R%EE (A)

EREEY

EZZ B EMN2007F4827BK - EBES
EEMCEERATIEGS BEXEEST2XE
RE AR BEREEAEEZMBER
2 NEERRSRRARE BRI

EVLZBRCREREEKSLE MBESL
ERBRRERE (RERBIIFRTES)
BEREE  BRMEMEAMREERS

B RERZEEEXR -

EREZESCNEREBRRZEMEBERNASE
E2015FH B FEZEERRAMBRER
REEATENZ ST RARER - 2015F 3
BFEZFROABZEZESTER -

BZZ B ER2015SFHRFEBERITT4X
€H - BREEEN0ENRFEEDET
2 BR B IR SNIEAZ BRAT 2 BE AT AR R
(BEME)  BEE Z=2014F98308 1<
BAZ REEZTHYHERRFHEER
i« BE0ISFHBRFELCEZEFVHE
B REFEEAM  BEREERIBE I
2T sHEAREE 2 BB EIR RGEAE
BEPR R 2 PR I R B AR BB R 2 R
BHRERBREH EREHEEREZEY
CREEHNAFREINBEZRA -

ERZBRCRIER2EE - BRIEAK
Mt ARARBREEN B I MEBIE o

FR20VSFMRFE - AR B ZBENATIR A9
ERYFRERRB 2 ERDT

2015 2014
20155 20144
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT T
1,854 1,774
400 316



BOARD COMMITTEES (Cont'd)

AUDIT COMMITTEE (Cont'd)

The Audit Committee has undertaken a review of all non-audit services provided by the
Company's auditor and concluded that in their opinion such services did not affect the
independence of the auditor.

The Audit Committee recommended to the Board on re-appointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers as the Company's external auditor for the ensuing year and
the related resolutions shall be put forth in the forthcoming AGM.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established on 27 April 2007 with written terms of
reference in compliance with the CG Code. The primary duties of the Nomination
Committee are to make recommendations to the Board on appointment of Directors
with due regard to diversity of the Board and management of the Board succession.

The members of the Nomination Committee are Mr. Ng Ching Wah; Mr. Chan Yue
Kwong, Michael; Mr. Sze Kwok Wing, Nigel (who are INEDs); Mr. Tsang Kang Po and Mr.
Lam Wing Tak (who are executive Directors). Mr. Ng Ching Wah is the chairman of the
Nomination Committee.

The Nomination Committee met once during the 2015 Financial Year and adopted the
board diversity policy ("the Policy”). The Policy sets out the approach to achieve diversity
on the Board. In reviewing and assessing the Board composition, the Nomination
Committee will consider a number of factors, including but not limited to educational
background, professional qualifications, skills, industry experience, age, gender and
ethnic origin, subject to the actual situation of the Company and relevant provisions
under the applicable laws. Restrictions like age, gender and ethnic origin will not be set
when short-listing of director's candidates. The major work performed by the Nomination
Committee in respect of the 2015 Financial Year included assessing independence of
the independent non-executive directors and make recommendation in compliance
with the Policy on re-election of Mr. Lam Wing Tak, Mr. Ip Ping Im and Mr. Sze Kwok
Wing, Nigel as Directors of the Company at the forthcoming AGM. The attendance of
the Directors for the Nomination Committee meeting is set out in the table on page
31 of this annual report.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on 27 April 2007 with written terms of
reference in compliance with the CG Code. The primary duties of the Remuneration
Committee are to review the terms of remuneration packages, bonuses and other
compensation payable to Directors and senior management of the Group with reference
to the nature of their work, complexity of the responsibilities and performance and
to make recommendations to the Board. No director is allowed to take part in any
discussion about his own remuneration.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TEERRE

BOARD COMMITTEES (Cont'd)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (Cont'd)

The members of the Remuneration Committee are Mr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael; Mr.
Sze Kwok Wing, Nigel and Mr. Ng Ching Wah (who are INEDs) and Mr. Lam Wing Tak and
Mr. Tsang Kang Po (who are executive Directors). Mr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael is the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee met once during the 2015 Financial Year. The major
work performed by the Remuneration Committee for the 2015 Financial Year included
reviewing the remuneration of the Directors and senior management with reference
to the remuneration level of directors and senior management of comparable listed
companies. The attendance of the Directors for the Remuneration Committee meeting
is set out in the table on page 31 of this annual report.

Details of the remuneration of the Directors disclosed pursuant to Section 161 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Appendix 16 of the Listing Rules are set out in
note 25 to the consolidated financial statements. The Directors' fee shall be subject to
shareholders' approval at general meetings. Other emoluments shall from time to time
be determined by the Board with reference to the Directors' duties and responsibilities
and subject to a review by the Remuneration Committee.

COMPANY SECRETARY

As an employee of the Company, Mr. Chou Yung, the Company Secretary that
supports the Board by ensuring the Board procedures are followed, advising the Board
on governance matters and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of Directors. During the 2015 Financial Year, Mr. Chou undertook not less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training to update his skills and knowledge. Profile
of Company Secretary is set out on page 13 of this annual report.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for preparing the Company's financial
statements for 2015 Financial Year which give a true and fair view of financial position
of the Group and in accordance with statutory requirements and applicable accounting
standards. The Company's interim report and annual report are prepared and published
in accordance with statutory requirements and Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
in a timely manner required under the Listing Rules. Directors are provided with
adequate information to enable them to make an informed assessment of financial and
other information on matters for their approval. Furthermore, Directors are provided
with monthly updates on the Group's performance to enable the Directors to discharge
their duties.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Cont'd)

FINANCIAL REPORTING (Cont'd)

The statement of the auditor of the Company regarding their reporting responsibility
to shareholders on the consolidated financial statements of the Group is set out in the
Independent Auditor's Report on pages 41 to 42 of this annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Group has in place the sound and effective internal controls to safeguard
shareholders' investment and assets of the Group. The Company has from time to time
reviewed effectiveness of internal control systems in order to ensure that they meet with
the dynamic and ever changing business environment.

During the 2015 Financial Year, the Board has reviewed effectiveness of the Group's
internal control systems, including financial, operational and compliance controls and
risk management functions, adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff
of the Company's accounting and financial reporting function, and training programmes
and budget through the Internal Audit Department and the Audit Committee with
assistance of an international independent risk consulting firm.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

EFFECTIVE COMMUNICATION

The Board recognises the importance of continuing communications with shareholders
and strives to ensure timeliness, completeness and accuracy of information disclosure
to shareholders and to the protection in the interests of shareholders.

The Board has established a shareholders' communication policy and review it on
a regular basis to ensure its effectiveness. As a channel to further promote effective
communication, the Group maintains a website, allowing shareholders to access
updates on the Company's particulars where the Company's announcements, financial
information, shareholders' communication policy and other information are posted.

The Board maintains an on-going dialogue with shareholders through general meeting
of the Company to communicate with shareholders. The Chairman of the Board, the
representative of each committee and the external auditor have attended the general
meeting to answer any questions from shareholders. Separate resolutions are proposed
at general meetings on each substantially separate issue. A shareholder is permitted to
appoint any number of proxies to attend and vote in his stead.

The notice of AGM was sent to all shareholders at least 20 clear business days before
the meeting and the notice of all other general meetings to be sent at least 10 clear
business days.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TEERRE

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS (Cont'd)

VOTING BY POLL

At the general meeting, the Chairman exercised his power under the Articles to put
each resolution set out in the notice to be voted by way of a poll and explained detailed
procedures for conducting a poll, and answered questions from shareholders. The results
of the poll, if any, are published on websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

PROCEDURES FOR CONVENING AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING

Any two or more shareholders, or any one shareholder which is a recognised clearing
house (or its nominee(s)), holding not less than one- tenth of the paid-up capital of
the Company may, in accordance with requirements and procedures set out in the
Articles of Association of the Company, make a requisition to the Board to convene an
extraordinary general meeting of the Company and putting forward proposals at the
meeting. The objects of the meeting must be stated in the written requisition which
must be signed by the requisitionist(s) and deposited at the Company's principal place
of business in Hong Kong.

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to put forward new resolutions at general
meetings under Cayman Islands law or the Articles of Association of the Company.
Shareholders who wish to put forward a resolution may request the Company to
convene an extraordinary general meeting in accordance with procedures set out above.

PROCEDURES FOR RAISING ENQUIRIES

Shareholders should direct their questions about their shareholdings to the Company's
Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
(Address: 17M/F., Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong and
Telephone: (852) 2862 8555).

Shareholders who have any questions for the Board may send written enquiries together
with their detailed contact information, such as postal address or e-mail address,
by post to the Company's principal place of business in Hong Kong or by e-mail to
ir@pacific-textiles.com for attention of the Company Secretary.

The Board also encourages shareholders to attend general meetings to make enquiries
with the Board directly.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The memorandum and articles of association of the Company is published on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. During the 2015 Financial Year, there
is no change to the memorandum and articles of association of the Company.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF PACIFIC TEXTILES HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Pacific Textiles Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages
43 to 126, which comprise the consolidated and Company balance sheets as at 31
March 2015, and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS” RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the predecessor Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 32), and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements
based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F, Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 March 2015 and of the Group's
profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the predecessor Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32).

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 25 June 2015
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

Ekizo15¢3ﬂ31 EIJJ:qf '

For the year ended 31 March 2015
2015 2014
20154 20145
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Uk FET FET
Revenue WA \ 5 6,906,883 7,423,481
Cost of sales SHER AR 24 (5,728,977)  (6,062,110)
Gross profit EF 1,177,906 1,361,371
Other income and other gains/(losses) - net E bt A\ & Eth ez 23
(B#E)— FH 109,075 124,669
Distribution and selling expenses DIEMHERX 24 (81,539) (67,245)
General and administrative expenses —MRRITHAX 24 (94,605) (130,191)
Operating profit R RF 1,110,837 1,288,604
Finance income BRI 26 19,532 8,287
Finance costs RN 26 (6,960) (1,594)
Share of profits of associates DEEE R AR 9 34,213 36,499
Reversal of provision for impairment loss on - pA — e B4 N 7] > 25 R(E 9
interest in an associate B R R AR o 33,200 _
Share of losses of joint ventures DMEEERRZEE 10 (384) (20,655)
Gain on disposal of interests in joint ventures &R A &N AR FTE IR 10 29,265
Profit before income tax FreB AR F 1,219,703 1,311,141
Income tax expense PSR X 27 (150,037) (196,750)
Profit for the year FERF 1,069,666 1,114,391
Profit attributable to: THATEGEER
Equity holders of the Company PiN/NZ T%ﬁﬁjﬁ)\ 1,074,785 1,116,802
Non-controlling interests FEFE I M R (5,119) 2,411)
1,069,666 1,114,391
Farnings per share for profit FARABERFEA
attributable to equity holders of J’ﬂﬁxﬁnﬂZiHy\Eﬂ
the Company during the year L
- basic (HKS) — &KX (B) 28 0.74 0.77
— diluted (HKS) — 8% (B) 28 0.74 0.77
Dividends BRE 29 1,157,138 1,518,744

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial — BEMT Z MizE ot 4R & BIFSRER 2 281D -
statements.
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FREARER

BZE2015F3A31HIEFE
2015 2014
20156 20144
HKS'000  HKS000
TEr TEx
Profit for the year FEERF 1,069,666 1,114,391
Other comprehensive income: Hip 2 EdE
Iltems that has been reclassified to profit or loss BN ERIBSMIEE
Release of reserve upon disposal of HESE AR RR
interests in joint ventures fE 4,322 -
ltems that may be reclassified to profitor loss ~ E{& s fEREIBHMIER
Currency translation differences SN E B (3,529) (5218)
Fair value gains on available-for-sale HHESREE
financial assets N EWRE 29 17
Total comprehensive income for the year FEXHENSEH 1,070,488 1,109,190
Attributable to: TH AL
Equity holders of the Company RAREREEA 1,076,594 1,111,824
Non-controlling interests e £ (6,106) (2,634)
1,070,488 1,109,190

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

As at 31 March 2015

2015 2014
20154 20144
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
MisE FET T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets RBEE
Land use rights + Hh fsF FAAEE 52,648 53,930
Property, plant and equipment ME - WENMEE 1,411,169 1,183,088
Interests in associates i ElNE o - ey 9(a) 222,820 182,382
Interests in joint ventures SXWNCIA £ 10 = 18,610
Available-for-sale financial assets A ECREE 1 1,827 1,798
Prepayments for land use rights and T AR
property, plant and equipment %5 MR R TR 3R 14 71,723 31,481
1,760,187 1,471,289
Current assets RBEE
Inventories FE 12 965,542 1,130,742
Trade and bills receivables FEW R R R R iR 13 800,188 844,920
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables e -~ BHAE IE&EI{‘M%W/AIE 14 114,786 60,079
Amounts due from associates JE B 5 R B FRIE 9(b) 40,254 68,400
Derivative financial instruments TES HEI,\ 15 2,639 1,655
Tax recoverable TR IE O U 18,150 =
Cash and bank balances & RIBITEEH 16 2,025,419 1,776,269
3,966,978 3,882,065
Total assets EELE 5,727,165 5,353,354
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to equity holders of RATERIEE AEGER
the Company
Share capital A% A 17 1,446 1,446
Share premium & im B 17 1,453,188 1,453,188
Reserves ] 18 2,042,081 2,480,379
3,496,715 3,935,013
Non-controlling interests e G MRS (2,306) 3,800
Total equity RSB 3,494,409 3,938,813
B AR#HEBZERARADTE 2014/2015 FEHRE 45



HREERRER ()

R2015F3H31H8

2015 2014
20154 20144
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
MisE FET T
LIABILITIES =R
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Borrowings (RN 19 144,409 47,509
Deferred income tax liabilities BEAMSHAE 20 12,178 58,267
156,587 105,776
Current liabilities RBAE
Borrowings (=R 19 987,911 -
Trade and bills payables JEFTBR R R R 21 746,932 839,467
Accruals and other payables fEETTE B R E M EN A 22 305,838 391,089
Amount due to an associate JFE B & A B FOR 9(c) 4,574 6,030
Derivative financial instruments PTEEmIA 15 2,349 23,388
Current income tax liabilities REAFTISTHAE 28,565 48,791
2,076,169 1,308,765
Total liabilities EERE 2,232,756 1,414,541
Total equity and liabilities EERAEHEE 5,727,165 5,353,354
Net current assets mENEEFE 1,890,809 2,573,300
Total assets less current liabilities EEHAERRBER 3,650,996 4,044,589

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 25 June 2015and ~ EERBE RN 201556 A25 8 & EHRER I L

were signed on its behalf: REFREZE
Wan Wai Loi Tsang Kang Po
FER BHK
Director Director
BE EE

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.  B&Mt 2 i zE Ttk 42 & BA RS R KR 2 2015 o
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BALANCE SHEET

As at 31 March 2015 L
2015 2014
20155 20144
Note HK$‘000 HKS$'000
B 5E F#&T FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries N NG 2 8 2,238,634 2,491,886
Current assets REEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEULHT B A B ZRIE 8 2,386,738 1,300,000
Cash and bank balances e RIRTTAERR 16 132,924 21,654
2,519,662 1,321,654
Total assets EEHAE 4,758,296 3,813,540
EQUITY R
Share capital A% A 17 1,446 1,446
Share premium & im B 17 1,453,188 1,453,188
Reserves fEiE 18 848,052 1,026,952
2,302,686 2,481,586
LIABILITIES =N
Non-current liabilities kREBEE
Amount due to a subsidiary JEAST BT /88 R B R IE 8 = 696,667
Current liabilities REBEE
Borrowings BE 19 787,911 -
Accruals and other payables FEETIE B & H b e 08 22 6,061 4,064
Amounts due to subsidiaries JRE AT BT JB8 R B 3RE 8 1,661,638 631,223
2,455,610 635,287
Total liabilities EE8E 2,455,610 1,331,954
Total equity and liabilities EEREEEE 4,758,296 3,813,540
Net current assets REEEFE 64,052 686,367
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBAE 2,302,686 3,178,253

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 25 June 2015 and & B /@B 201596 525 B #L /&M RER I A

were signed on its behalf; REEREE
Wan Wai Loi Tsang Kang Po
FER BHK
Director Director
BE BF

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.  B&MI Z Mzt Jhlt 4R & BIIERER 2 3615 -
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For the year ended 3

nf\é*%é%@]%:{

HE2015F3831BILFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

RAFEREE AR
Non-
Share Share controlling
capital premium Reserves Sub-total interests Total
B BARE e Mt FEHEER g
Note HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
iz B B B B B B
(No\te 17) (No\te 17) (No\te 18)
(Bt17) (Frsti7) (Fritie)

Balance at 1 April 2013 R2013F4R18 2 £t 1,443 1434970 2529432 3,965,845 6,434 3,972,279
Comprehensive income: 2EKE
Profit for the year EREF| = = 1,116,802 1,116,802 (2411) 1114391
Other comprehensive income: Hit2ElE
Currency translation differences ONERE =5 = = (4,995) (4,995) 20) (5218)
Fair value gains on available-for-sale AHHESREAE

financial assets AhEkE 1 - - 17 17 = 17
Total other comprehensive income, Hip2AkEEE -

net of tax HRTEE - - (4978) (4978) (025) (5201)
Total comprehensive income 2ENELE - - 1,111,824 1,111,824 (2634) 1,109,190
Transactions with owners: BEFARS :
Share-based compensation expenses UEHAER CRES T - - 1834 1834 = 1834
Exercise of share options BRI 17(c) 4 29418 (5737) 23,685 - 23,685
Share repurchase e Q) (11,200) - (11,201) - (11,201)
Dividends &S = = (1,156,974) (1,156974) - (1,156,974)
Total transactions with owners BRAARGAE 3 18218 (1,160,877) (1,142,656) = (1,142,656)
Balance at 31 March 2014 M2014E35318 2588 1446 1,453,188 2480379 3935013 3800 3938813
Balance at 1 April 2014 R2014E4 A1 A2 &t 1,446 1,453,188 2,480,379 3,935,013 3,800 3,938,813
Comprehensive income: 2EKE
Profit for the year ERaA - - 1,074,785 1,074,785 (5,119) 1,069,666
Other comprehensive income: Hip2EkE
Currency translation differences ONEHE =5 = = (2,542) (2,542) (987) (3,529)
Fair value gains on available-for-sale AtHESREE

financial assets DR EWE 11 - - 29 29 = 29
Release of reserve upon disposal of HERENARRRRR

interests in joint ventures 15 = = 4322 4,322 = 4322

Total other comprehensive income, HEp2EhRHE

net of tax il - - 1,809 1,809 (987) 822
Total comprehensive income 2ARRAH - - 1,076,594 1,076,594 (6,106) 1,070,488
Transactions with owners: BEBEARS :
Share-based compensation expenses DRAAER BESH = = 3,852 3,852 = 3,852
Dividends B2 - - (1,518,744) (1,518,744) - (1,518,744)
Total transactions with owners REBARGEE - - (1,514892)  (1,514,892) - (1,514,892)
Balance at 31 March 2015 W2015F3A310 2 &tk 1,446 1,453,188 2,042,081 3,496,715 (2,306) 3,494,409
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. ~ F&Mt Z MEE Ty bAR & BA R ¥Rk 2 2B 1p -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31 March 2015

2015 2014
20155 20144F
Note HK$’000 HKS$'000
ks FE T FAT
Cash flow from operating activities REERIRERE
Cash generated from operations REEBEE RS 30(a) 1,249,195 1,540,913
Interest paid BERFE (6,960) =
Hong Kong profits tax paid ERBEAFEH (137,510) (130,404)
PRC income tax paid BHRBEATSH (65,861) (65,379)
PRC withholding tax paid BT BRI (32,275) =
1,006,589 1,345,130
Cash flow from investing activities RETHZEERE
Purchases of property, plant and equipment ~ BEBW¥ - KB L& (417,993) (262,326)
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEWME BENX
plant and equipment RAEPTISRIE 30(b) 7,451 19,145
Dividends received from associates B UiHs & A RIS 9(a) 27,629 21,752
Proceeds from disposal of interests HESEARER
in joint ventures Fr8 s 10(a) 51,040 =
Capital injection into a joint venture BENBZEE - (776)
Interest income received B 2 A 11,350 8,287
(320,523) (213,918)
Cash flow from financing activities RETBHZRERE
Proceeds from exercise of share options FERRETTEFTIS 3RIE = 23,685
Share repurchases [i& 15 B 2] = (11,201)
Proceeds from bank borrowings IRITIERFTBRIA 1,085,234 =
Dividends paid BEfRE (1,518,744) (1,156,974)
(433,510) (1,144,490)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and HeRRESEEER
cash equivalents #inGRd) FE8E 252,556 (13,278)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April R4F1BZ2RERESFEEE 1,776,269 1,793,360
Currency translation differences SN E =58 (3,406) (3.813)
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March MR3A3IAZRERESEHEER 2,025,419 1,776,269

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.  B&FT 2 MisE Ty L 4R & B ISk 2 501D ©
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FINANCIALINFORMATION
BEEN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS GEMBRRMT

GENERAL INFORMATION

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
the “Group”) are principally engaged in the manufacturing and trading of textile
products. Its production base is primarily located in the People’s Republic of China
(the "PRC").

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The
address of its registered office is PO. Box 309GT, Ugland House, South Church Street,
George Town, Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands.

The Company has its listing on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong Dollars
("HKS"), unless otherwise stated. These consolidated financial statements have been
approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 25 June 2015.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES

The basis of preparation and principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS") issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA"). The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of available-for-sale financial
assets, and the recognition of financial assets and financial liabilities (including
derivative instruments) at fair value through profit or loss.

In accordance with the transitional and saving arrangements for Part 9 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), “Accounts and Audit”as set out in
sections 76 to 87 of Schedule 11 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622), the consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with the
applicable requirements of the predecessor Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32) for
this financial year and the comparative period.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS requires
the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group's accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS

OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont’d)
(a) New standards, amendments to standards and interpretation to existing

()

standards adopted by the Group

The following amendments to standards are mandatory for the accounting
period beginning on 1 April 2014 and relevant to the Group. The adoption
of these amendments to standards has no impact on the published results
for the current and prior periods and the financial position of the Group,
other than for certain additional disclosures.

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 (2011) (Amendment), “Investment entities”

HKAS 32 (Amendment), “Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities”

HKAS 36 (Amendment), “Recoverable amount disclosure for non-financial
assets”

New standards and amendments to standards that have been issued but are not
effective

The following new standards and amendments to standards are relevant to
the Group, have been issued but are not effective for accounting periods
beginning on 1 April 2014 and have not been early adopted:

HKFRS 9, “Financial instruments”

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (Amendments), “Sale or contribution
of assets between an investor and its associate or
joint venture”

HKFRS 11 (Amendment), “Accounting for acquisitions
of interests in joint operations”

2.1 RREE (F)

(a)

)

KREBEIFRKAZ FETER R BT
BRI R ZFEZNEFT AR

o AR2014F4 81 BRI &
FTEIM BT R EANEE A
2R ZERT AR o IRz E AR
ZABRT AN S A EE RN E AT R
BABBEZEAMEERETE
MREETE  EETEIMNEE
BRAN o

EAVBMEEEI05R - BB
IR ELNE R RESS
=t 48 Bl 22758 (20114F) (& 5T
N [EEEE

B & 52 B 325 (18 7T )
[BETREERERAME]

&8 8 &t % R F365% (&8 7] &)
[FEMEEZAINE S ERE
)

E B AR ELZ FETER R H
TTEBZ IE5T R
ATEANEEBGHZFETEN R
WRITER ZEFTARE K20145F4 4
1Rz e EMBRAEEERE
B INARIRRTERA ¢

BEMBEREENFR [T
£

BRMBHREEF10HERE L
SRFERIF28 (BRI A) [
BEREBLEYLBENEZH
MEEREITE ]

ARG HREENBNR (BFT
MR G ok Y A
bz
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INANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont’d)

(b) New standards and amendments to standards that have been issued but are not

52

(@]

effective (Contd)
HKFRS 15, “Revenue from contracts with customers”

HKAS 1 (Amendments), “Disclosure initiative”

HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 (Amendments), “Clarification of
acceptable methods of depreciation and amortisation”

HKAS 27 (Amendment), “Equity method in separate
financial statements”

Annual improvements 2010 — 2012 cycle
Annual improvements 2011 — 2013 cycle
Annual improvements 2012 — 2014 cycle

The Directors are currently assessing the likely impact of the adoption of
these new standards and amendments to standards to the Group in future
periods. The directors of the Company will adopt these new standards and
amendments to standards when they become effective.

New Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.622)

In addition, the requirements of Part 9 “Accounts and Audit” of the new
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) come into operation as from
the Company’s first financial year commencing on or after 3 March 2014
in accordance with section 358 of that Ordinance. The Group is in the
process of making an assessment of expected impact of the changes in
the Companies Ordinance on the consolidated financial statements in the
period of initial application of Part 9 of the new Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622). So far it has concluded that the impact is unlikely to
be significant and only the presentation and the disclosure of information
in the consolidated financial statements will be affected.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.2 Subsidiaries
22.1 Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over which the group
has control. The group controls an entity when the group is exposed to,
or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity.
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is transferred
to the group. They are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

(a) Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for business
combinations. The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a
subsidiary is the aggregate fair values of the assets transferred, the
liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group. The consideration transferred includes
the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. The
Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis, either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interest’s proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at their acquisition date fair value,
unless another measurement basis is required by HKFRS.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value
of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of
the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total
of consideration transferred, non-controlling interest recognised and
previously held interest measured is less than the fair value of the net
assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the
difference is recognised directly in the income statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.2 Subsidiaries (Cont’d)

22.1 Consolidation (Contd)

54

(@

Business combinations (Cont'd)

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions
between group companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated. When necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries have
been adjusted to conform with the group’s accounting policies.

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without change in control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in loss of
control are accounted for as equity transactions — that is, as transactions
with the owners in their capacity as owners. The difference between
the fair value of any consideration paid and the relevant share acquired
of the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in
equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling interests are also
recorded in equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest in the
entity is re-measured to its fair value at the date when control is lost,
with the change in carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair
value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint venture or
financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted for as if
the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This
may mean that amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 REEEEEZSBEREE ()
POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Cont'd) 2.2 B AT (%)

222 Separate financial statements
Interests in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment. Cost also
includes direct attributable costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the company on the basis of dividends received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the interests in subsidiaries is required upon
receiving dividends from these investments if the dividend exceeds the
total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period the dividend is
declared or if the carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the financial statements of the
investee's net assets including goodwill.

2.3 Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant influence but not
control, generally accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the
voting rights. Interests in associates are accounted for using the equity method
of accounting. Under the equity method, the investment is initially recognised
at cost, and the carrying amount is increased or decreased to recognise the
investor’s share of the profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition.
The Group’s interests in associates include goodwill identified on acquisition.
Upon the acquisition of the ownership interest in an associate, any difference
between the cost of the associate and the group's share of the aggregate fair
value of the associate’s identifiable assets and liabilities is accounted for as
goodwill.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant influence is
retained, only a proportionate share of the amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.

The Group's share of post-acquisition profit or loss is recognised in the income
statement, and its share of post-acquisition movements in other comprehensive
income is recognised in other comprehensive income with a corresponding
adjustment to the carrying amount of the investment. When the Group’s share
of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its investments in the associate,
including any other unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments
on behalf of the associate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.3 Associates (Cont'd) 23 B AT ()

56

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is any objective
evidence that the investments in associates are impaired. If this is the case,
the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between
the recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying value and recognises
the amount adjacent to ‘share of profit/(loss) of an associate’ in the income
statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream transactions
between the Group and its associate are recognised in the Group’s financial
statements only to the extent of unrelated investor’s interests in the associates.
Unrealised losses are eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
an impairment of the asset transferred. The financial information of associates
has been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the accounting
policies adopted by the Group.

Gain or losses on dilution of equity interest in associates are recognised in the
income statement.

2.4 Joint arrangements

Joint arrangements are classified as either joint operations or joint ventures
depending on the contractual rights and obligations of each investor. The
Group has assessed the nature of its joint arrangements and determined them
to be joint ventures. Joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method.

Under the equity method of accounting, interests in joint ventures are initially
recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's share of
the post-acquisition profits or losses and movements in other comprehensive
income. The Group's investments in joint ventures include goodwill identified
on acquisition. Upon the acquisition of the ownership interest in a joint venture,
any difference between the cost of the joint venture and the Group's share of the
net fair value of the joint venture’s identifiable assets and liabilities is accounted
for as goodwill. When the Group's share of losses in a joint venture equals or
exceeds its interests in the joint ventures (which includes any long-term interests
that, in substance, form part of the group’s net investment in the joint ventures),
the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations
or made payments on behalf of the joint ventures.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 HmEEEHSTSHERHE (F)
POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.4 Joint arrangements (Cont'd) 24 &R (F)
Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its joint ventures are AEEEAESERAETRG ZARE
eliminated to the extent of the Group's interests in the joint ventures. Unrealised Bl EASEREGE AR ZER
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an HiE - RIRGBTHEREELR
impairment of the asset transferred. Amounts reported by the joint ventures BEZEE  SARGZARERER
have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies ML - GERRIZEWMESTED
adopted by the Group. ER W E o - DARE(R B2 7N & B 5 40
ZEHABE - -
Dilution gains and losses arising in investments in joint ventures are recognised BENRRERMEEZHERE
in the income statement. MU ER R FER ©
2.5 Segment reporting 2.5 R R
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal WMELEN W2 BEERMHELER
reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating REMRH A REMTR 2 E%E
decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing BER— - - gREERAREAREIE
performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the executive BRMFAGEED T 2FRER - AR
directors collectively, who make strategic decisions. TES2EMIELRIERT -
2.6 Foreign currency translation 2.6 HMEBRE
(a) Functional and presentation currency @) DpERZZEH
Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group's entities are AEEZER 2 MBRERMYIIE
measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which B - UUAREEEREEMEE
the Group entity operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated BRBRFEEE ([heeEE])
financial statements are presented in HKS, which is the Company’s functional FTE o SREUBMERTDAKRAF
and the Group's presentation currency. 2N EBERAEER 25 EK
BILES ©
(b) Transactions and balances (b) X5 RKiEer
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency INEZ SRR HNIBR ENFTE
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or HeEXRERNEEY &8
valuations where items are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses RERGRIBFHEBZERGE
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation RONEF B EREERBEM
at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated EEINERE NG RER

in foreign currencies are recognised in the income statement.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to cash and cash equivalents RekReEBYVERBZELT
are presented in the income statement within ‘finance income’ or ‘finance BANBBREFBERARZ [
costs’ AL Sk [ ] IR o

All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the income FrEEMmELBERKZRE
statement within ‘other income and other gains/(losses) — net’ A R E A Wz (85 18) -F

B MER -
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2.6 Foreign currency translation (Cont'd)
(b) Transactions and balances (Contd)
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(c)

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denominated in foreign
currency classified as available-for-sale are analysed between translation
differences resulting from changes in the amortised cost of the securities
and other changes in the carrying amount of the securities. Translation
differences related to changes in amortised cost are recognised in profit
or loss, and other changes in carrying amount are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets and liabilities such
as equities held at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in profit
or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation differences on non-
monetary financial assets, such as equities classified as available-for-sale, are
included in other comprehensive income.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group entities (none of which
has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that balance sheet;

income and expenses for each income statement are translated
at average exchange rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and expenses are translated at
the rate on the dates of the transactions); and

(iii) all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign
entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated
at the closing rate. Exchange differences arising are recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.7 Leasehold land and land use rights
The up-front prepayments made for leasehold land interests — classified as
operating leases and land use rights are accounted for as operating leases. They
are expensed in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the periods
of the lease or the land use right. When there is impairment, the impairment is
expensed in the income statement.

2.8 Property, plant and equipment

Land and buildings comprise mainly factories and offices. Leasehold land
interests classified as finance leases and all other property, plant and equipment
other than construction in progress are stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. Cost
may also include transfers from equity of any gains/losses on qualifying cash
flow hedges of foreign currency purchases of property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as
a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the income
statement during the period in which they are incurred.

Leasehold land interests classified as finance leases commence amortisation
from the time when the land interest becomes available for its intended use.
Amortisation on leasehold land classified as finance lease and depreciation
on other assets other than construction in progress are calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate their costs over their estimated useful lives at
the annual rates, as follows:

Leasehold land classified as finance lease Over the remaining lease term (2%)

Buildings 4% — 5%
Plant and machinery 10% - 20%
Leasehold improvements, furniture

and equipment 20% - 33%
Motor vehicles 20% — 25%

2 RREEABEESIFBRME (H)

2.7 FHE T % £ it FAAE

AREE LR - D BEAKEHEER
T3 AR (I 2 BT R TR SRR IR K
LHOIER - WRZBEOFHKRL
o IR A B SRR S RS » 3K
i hER E - AR E RS HRE

28 1% - BMERRE

THIRETIRERBEMIPAE
DERBEMEZHE TS EA
BEMME  BEL®RE (EREIRE
BRON) THIRIE 2 AR R B AT E K
REFRERE (A) Ik - BLK
AEREBEEERELZRAX - K
AR BIEIC ST EE AN A
SNEBEME  BERRBZIEER
RenBERELEZEMNGE B

REZEFEEABBRRENGESE
AREMAREE Kl S st HIA R
RAZIERT » FERKATEAR
EZRAESIERBRBLEE (RE
RER) - BREMH ZREET AR
HEER o A EMAEE RREREE
A HRAER SR

DEABMEREZHE T ER - 8
TR HERERERBRRE
HenBAREMEEZHET 2B
HEEMEE (EEIRERIN KE
BORTHEITE - UIRIBF RIRE A5

A5 A B SR AN TS
DERABERE FeARE

et HIN(2%)
BF 4% - 5%
55 N i B 10% — 20%
HEWHEEE -

RE R 20% - 33%
B 20% - 25%
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2.8 Property, plant and equipment (Cont’d)

60

The assets' useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance
sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable
amount.

Construction in progress represents buildings, plant and machinery and
leasehold improvements, furniture and equipment on which construction
work has not been completed. It is carried at cost which includes construction
expenditures and other direct costs less any impairment losses. On completion,
construction in progress is transferred to the appropriate categories of property,
plant and equipment at cost less accumulated impairment losses if any. No
depreciation is provided for construction in progress and computer software
until the asset is completed and available for use.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the
carrying amount and are recognised within in the income statement.

2.9 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which
the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For
the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for
which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-
financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed
for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF

PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.10 Financial assets
2101 Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories: at fair

value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, and available-for-sale.

The classification depends on the purpose for which the financial assets

were acquired. Management determines the classification of its financial

assets at initial recognition.

(a)

&

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets
held for trading. A financial asset is classified in this category if acquired
principally for the purpose of selling in the short-term. Derivatives
are also categorised as held for trading unless they are designated
as hedges. Assets in this category are classified as current assets if
expected to be settled within 12 months; otherwise, they are classified
as non-current.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. They
are included in current assets, except for the amounts that are settled
or expected to be settled more than 12 months after the balance sheet
date. These are classified as non-current assets. The Group's loans and
receivables comprise trade and other receivables, deposits and other
receivables and cash and bank balance in the balance sheet.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated in this category or not classified in any of the
other categories. They are included in non-current assets unless the
investment matures or management intends to dispose of it within 12
months of the balance sheet date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)
2.10 Financial assets (Cont'd)

210 eMEE ()
2002 FERR G &=

2102 Recognition and measurement

Regular way of purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the
trade-date — the date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs
for all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial
assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at
fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in the income statement.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from
the investments have expired or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale
financial assets and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and receivables are subsequently
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the ‘financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss’ category are presented in the income
statement within ‘other income and other gains/(losses) — net'in the period
in which they arise. Dividend income from financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss is recognised in the income statement as part of other
income when the Group's right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-monetary securities classified
as available-for-sale are recognised in other comprehensive income.

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold or impaired, the
accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in equity are included in the
income statement as ‘other income and other gains/(losses) — net’.

Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated using the effective interest
method is recognised in the income statement as part of other income.
Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised in the
income statement as part of other income when the Group's right to receive
payments is established.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) ZABKR 3

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 HmEEEHSTSHERHE (F)

POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.11 Offsetting financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the
balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.

2.12 Impairment of financial assets
(a) Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each balance sheet date whether there
is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets
is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired
and impairment losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has
an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group
of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or a
group of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation, and where observable
data indicate that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future
cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate
with defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the loss is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not
been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of the
loss is recognised in the income statement. If a loan investment has a
variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss
is the current effective interest rate determined under the contract. As a
practical expedient, the Group may measure impairment on the basis of an
instrument’s fair value using an observable market price.

M EEEMIA

EREAEANTEAINEFEEERE
B YARERFREEEH AR
HREAENGTRARER  HEER
BEREAEE  YHEEEABRR
HEFE -

W EMEERE

(@) ABHEHAZE EE
AEENBEGERGEERNG
EAFETEEESRAE -2/
BESIXR —REEALRR
B - AAEFEFEEREAR
AREREREERELE T
ZREAGEHIRRE ([BXE
) MR (HEF) BRER
HZBARZAETBMEE Z AR
KREREBR T EAUARE
et FHERMEELCREE
AT EHBRBERELRERK °

MEBBERITEEEFAX
—HEBABLBREMBRE -
BHREREENSSIAE &
BARB A BERERAETTH MDA
BEA  URAABERBERETR
BEFRKBAERE A EZR
Do PImEENBRERE
RIER A EANR SR E

RERKEKREREMS - BX
SHEDBRBEEERAEEERS
BEERERNERITRMm AR
KBRERE (TEREDREEZ
ARRERER) cHEMEZE
it B - BEREEETNAH
B T8 K & FE BN AR W e R R
R MEFRKRERFHNE - 5
EERARERBRZITRE/EZS
FREEEMBERNE - EEEK
AT KRERMAATEEZT
LER BMTAZAFEEFE
HE e

B A#HBERERAT 2014/2015 FERE 63



b

FINANCIALINFORMATION
BEEN

HeBRENE (B)

2 mAELEHEBESTHREME (&)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
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2.12 Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)
(a) Assets carried at amortised cost (Contd)

WM EMEERE (&)
(@) ABHHAS ez BE (&)
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(b)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised (such as an improvement in the debtor’s
credit rating), the reversal of the previously recognised impairment loss is
recognised in the income statement.

Assets classified as available-for-sale

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. For
equity investments classified as available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is also evidence that
the assets are impaired. If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale
financial assets, the cumulative loss — measured as the difference between
the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on
that financial asset previously recognised in profit or loss — is removed from
equity and recognised in the profit and loss. Impairment losses recognised
in the income statement on equity instruments are not reversed through
the income statement.

2.13 Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract

is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at their fair value. The method

of recognizing the resulting gain or loss depends on whether the derivative is

designated as a hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being
hedged.

Derivative instruments which do not qualify for hedge accounting are accounted
for at fair value through profit or loss. Changes in the fair value of these
derivative instruments are recognised immediately in the income statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 HmEEEHSTSHERHE (F)
POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.14 Inventories L4 FE
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is T & AR 7S B ] 3R FHE 2 RIKE 5
determined using the weighted average method. The cost of finished goods and B o IRANANNREFIEEE - A
work-in-progress comprises raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and FERBZRABERE  EEY
related production overheads (based on normal operating capacity). It excludes T HEZEXKAREEEERESR
borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary B RESLEERNGE)  mAEE
course of business, less applicable variable selling expenses. AR o AR IR FE R B BEBKB
Bz A EERERZEBIHER
§ °
215 Trade and other receivables 215 FEURBR AR &% H e U R 18
Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or services JEWEFRAERSEESTETREER
performed in the ordinary course of business. If collection of trade and other HERBHITMEKEP 2 5IE -
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle TR R M2 B S0 % L At B W R IE 2 kB TR
of the business if longer), they are classified as current assets. If not, they are ME—F AR (WNEEEKEERA
presented as non-current assets. B AIATRKREMR) EESEA

RBEE  BADERIFRBEE -

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently JE s AR 3k I E A FE WWGRIB ¥ 1R A o
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less provision BERER - BB AR B IR F 35 DA 8
for impairment. AR R ERE = o
216 Cash and cash equivalents L RERRESEEER
In the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, EReREXRT  ReRkBLEEDY
deposits held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments, BEFHERS  FHRITENR - Hib
and bank overdrafts. In the balance sheet, bank overdrafts are shown within RERRSERERRITES - &
borrowings in current liabilities. EBERY  ROBIINARBARE
ZIEEA -
217 Share capital 217 A
Shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the DR RER BEHGBRETH
issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, ARk B AR 2 FTIE K AT R 51 B
from the proceeds. ey (MREHIE) -
When any group company purchases the Company’s equity share capital MAEAEE N TBARRR 2 =R
(treasury shares), the consideration paid, including any directly attributable KEFR) XMz HE: 81
incremental costs (net of income taxes) is deducted from equity attributable to AT E (R 2 FIG R A (FOFRFT1S
owners of the company until the shares are cancelled or reissued. W) BEBEBRARAREZFEEEZ
RPN EERGEFHEKEN
BITRIE -
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

66

POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.18 Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have
been acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers. Trade and other
payables are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or
less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are
presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

2.19 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred.
Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised cost; any difference between
the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised
in the income statement over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction
costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility
will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs.
To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the
facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalized as a pre-payment for liquidity
services and amortized over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months
after the balance sheet date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 RAUEERHREZSTHHRRMUE ()

POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.20 Current and deferred income tax
The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is
recognised in the income statement, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

220 BNER R IEFE FT 18 %%
BN Z B 18 X B 18 B AR RO IR SE R
HeBRTHEAEMEEKSNEEERE
=R ZIEEAEEIN  REER
WARPHER - EZBRT > HELS
FIEE MBS R E B P E

&5
27
A ©

(@) BIEIFTiZ#H

(a) Current income tax

()

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax
laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date in the
countries where the Company’s subsidiaries and associates and joint
ventures operate and generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.

Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on temporary
differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the financial statements. However, the deferred income
tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time
of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.
Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are
expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or
the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

Qutside basis differences

Deferred income tax is provided on taxable temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, except for deferred
income tax liability where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Generally the group is
unable to control the reversal of the temporary difference for associates.
Only where there is an agreement in place that gives the group the ability
to control the reversal of the temporary difference in the foreseeable future,
deferred tax liability in relation to taxable temporary differences arising from
the associate’s undistributed profits is not recognised.
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION
BEEN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) GEMBHRMT ()

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 HmEEXHRSERTHERE (#)
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.20 Current and deferred income tax (Cont’d) 220 BPEARERE FRAS B ()
(b) Deferred income tax (Contd) (b) EERTIZFE (&)
Outside basis differences (Cont'd) SNIREEZR ()
Deferred income tax assets are recognised on deductible temporary HMBAR BERRNEELR
differences arising from investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint P 2 REEE Z AR E R
arrangements only to the extent that it is probable the temporary difference ZEMABEMSHEE  BR
will reverse in the future and there is sufficient taxable profit available PR A R M 2= AR AT BB 1 A5 2R 8
against which the temporary difference can be utilised. B - B 7B 2 FE R 8
ARAZERMEER -
(c) Offsetting (c)
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally BERET AT NGB EIT 1A
enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities EEHEIPH BB EEE  BiE
and when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities relate to income EREREEMARY RBR—
taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the taxable entity or TS A B MR E L
different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the balances BTSSR 2 R E 88k T
on a net basis. 7] FE AR 5 = BB B 2 PSS BB
BRI REISHEERBER
FEHEEH o
221 Employee benefits 221 BREEF
(a) Employee leave entitlements @) 1ES EAEH
Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they accrue to EEAZBZ2EBRIENNZS
employees. A provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave BREAFTEERER - A5E
as a result of services rendered by employees up to the balance sheet date. HEEBZEAE A ILMREHRE
Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised mERZFR2 B BEEDE
until the time of leave. #H-EERZAZ2RBRERRY
REVBREAR 5 T 1R
(b) Retirement benefits (b) RIKIEF
The Group participates in various defined contribution retirement benefit AEBHTZEHEBERTRKE
schemes. A defined contribution plan is a retirement benefit scheme under FlsrEl - EREEHRGTEARRER
which the Group pays fixed contributions into a separate entity. The Group M EEED ERBHNZRIK
has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further contributions if BHEE - MEBESTEEH
the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits BEMNEENRRITRATHARBEAA
relating to employee service in the current and prior periods. RERBEINMERERERT - &

SEYELENIETEETIELE

— R -

The schemes are generally funded through payments to state/trustee- E-—RBEBABER,ZEA
administered funds. The Group pays contributions to publicly or privately EREESENHRREE - A%
administered funds on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The EiZoas M G BEEEER
Group has no further payment obligations once the contributions have A AE RIRIRET BB D H#
been paid. The contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense Mo —K{ERHKE - AEEN
when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the O — I RE T - R E
extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available. ENRSERAESRNZL - &

NHKERTRGRERS LM
BWEARNRZBERTHRBREE °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 HmEEEHSTSHERHE (F)
POLICIES (Cont'd)

221 Employee benefits (Cont’d) 221 EEEF ()
(c) Share-based compensation (c) BBz

Equity-settled shared-based payment transactions

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based compensation plan,
under which the entity receives services from employees as consideration
for equity instruments (options) of the Group. The fair value of the employee
services received in exchange for the grant of the options is recognised as
an expense. The total amount to be expensed is determined by reference
to the fair value of the options granted:

including any market performance conditions (for example, an entity’s
share price);

excluding the impact of any service and non-market performance
vesting conditions (for example, profitability, sales growth targets and
remaining an employee of the entity over a specified time period); and

including the impact of any non-vesting conditions (for example, the
requirement for employees to save).

Non-market vesting conditions are included in assumptions about the
number of options that are expected to vest. The total expense is recognised
over the vesting period, which is the period over which all of the specified
vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At each balance sheet date, the entity
revises its estimates of the number of options that are expected to vest
based on the non-marketing vesting conditions. It recognises the impact
of the revision to original estimates, if any, in the income statements, with
a corresponding adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the Company issues new shares. The
proceeds received net of any directly attributable transaction costs are
credited to share capital (nominal value) and share premium.

Share-base payment transactions among group entities

The grant by the Company of options over its equity instruments to the
employees of subsidiary undertakings in the Group is treated as a capital
contribution to the subsidiary. The fair value of employee services received,
measured by reference to the grant date fair value, is recognised over the
vesting period as an increase to investment in subsidiary undertakings, with
a corresponding credit to equity in the parent equity accounts.

NS EE AR BEREZ X5

AEBEEBETURSEFEUARN B
Az MetE - BiEZTE
AARE@ T A (B #
BEBDNGSREEREZNRE &
HEERERTHEES 2 EERK
NABEEREHAY - 2 ARXZ
BEDNDECRBREZAAE
EE

BRETADSREGE (P20
HRERMOER)

TR/ EARBMIETSRE
AITTREMRIE (PlanBABE S
iﬁ%iﬁﬁﬁﬁ‘DH%%IE%ﬁE
REINEEER) 278

BREGERBGRETE (PlmE
KEEHE)

FMSHE GG EEERRES
BREEA 2R - Eiiﬁz,v/i\
BREBIHRER  HEHER
ERMARERBGRGZEE -
NEHEER  RNEEREETS
B IGEE THE R BB AR
B2 st e REEER KRG RE
RIET R (ME) 2E -
I AR FE SR EEAR AR ©

REREREITER  AARE%H
TT# - HIBRENEREERS
P S P WO 2 BT 18 SRR ET A BRR
(EME) REMEE -

SERURNDBER 2R
AABREBEKBRRZEIR
THER=THZBRE ®HEA
MR R EARFA o WEEE T AR
B2AREBE 2EREAZA
/Lﬁﬁ TR WERBHARE
RVEREWMEBRRIRE 218
m- WHEESEARERKRE 2
=B o

B A#HBERERAT 2014/2015 FERE 69



b

FINANCIALINFORMATION
BEEN
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70

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

221 Employee benefits (Cont'd)
(d) Bonus plan
The expected cost of bonus payments is recognised as a liability when the
Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of services
rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be
made.

2.22 Provisions
Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow
will be required in settlement is determined by considering the class of
obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations
may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to
be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognised
as interest expense.

2.23 Revenue recognition
Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for
the sale of goods and services in the ordinary course of the Group's activities.
Revenue is shown, net of value-added tax, returns, rebates and discounts and
after eliminating sales within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably
measured, it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the entity
and when specific criteria have been met for each of the Group's activities as
described below. The Group bases its estimates on historical results, taking into
consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction and the specifics
of each arrangement.

(a) Sales of goods
Sales of goods are recognised when a Group's entity has delivered products
to the customer; the customer has accepted the products and collectability
of the related receivables is reasonably assured.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.23 Revenue recognition (Cont'd)

()

©

(@)

(e)

(f)

Sub-contracting income
Sub-contracting income is recognised when the services are rendered.

Handling income
Handling income is recognised when the services are rendered.

Rental income
Rental income under operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis
over the lease periods.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method. When a
loan and receivable is impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount to
its recoverable amount, being the estimated future cash flow discounted
at the original effective interest rate of the instrument, and continues
unwinding the discount as interest income. Interest income on impaired
loan and receivables are recognised using the original effective interest rate.

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is
established.

224 Government grants
Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there is a
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and the Group will comply
with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised in the income
statement over the period necessary to match them with the costs that they
are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to property, plant and equipment are included in
non-current liabilities as deferred government grants and are credited to the
income statement on a straight-line basis over the expected lives of the related
assets.
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2 mAELEHEBESTHREME (&)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Cont'd)

225 Contingent liabilities 25 REEE

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and
whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of
one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group.
It can also be a present obligation arising from past events that is not recognised
because it is not probable that outflow of economic resources will be required
or the amount of obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the financial
statements. When a change in the probability of an outflow occurs so that
outflow is probable, it will then be recognised as a provision.

2.26 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders is recognised as a liability
in the Group’s and Company's financial statements in the period in which the
dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders or directors, where
appropriate.

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

72

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk
(including foreign exchange risk and cash flow and fair value interest rate risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management objective
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group's financial performance.

(a) Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk
The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various
currency exposures, primarily with respect to US Dollars (“USS”"),
Renminbi (“RMB”) and Vietnamese Dongs (“VND"). The Group manages
its foreign exchange risks by performing regular review and monitoring
its foreign exchange exposure. The Group hedges against certain of its
exposure to reduce the risk involved as appropriate.

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong, the PRC, Macau and Vietnam.
Except for certain cash and bank balances and certain inter-company
receivables denominated in foreign currencies, transactions are mainly
conducted in the functional currency of the respective group entity.
The foreign currency risk arising from recognised assets and liabilities is
considered by the Directors to be minimal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)
(a) Market risk (Contd)

(@

Foreign exchange risk (Cont'd)

The Group uses forward currency contracts to hedge foreign exchange
risk. These forward currency contracts do not qualify for hedge
accounting and are accounted for at fair value through profit or loss.

The Group's cash and bank balances denominated in USS$ expose the
Group to foreign exchange risk. If the USS had strengthened/weakened
by 1% against the RMB with all other variables held constant, profit
for the year ended 31 March 2015 would have been approximately
HK$38,000 (2014: HK$39,000) higher/lower, mainly as a result of foreign
exchange gains/losses on translation of US$ denominated cash and
bank balances.

The Group's cash and bank balances denominated in US$ expose the
Group to foreign exchange risk. If the USS had strengthened/weakened
by 1% against the VND with all other variables held constant, profit
for the year ended 31 March 2015 would have been approximately
HK$2,248,000 (2014: HK$560,000) higher/lower, mainly as a result of
foreign exchange gains/losses on translation of USS denominated cash
and bank balances.

The Group's cash and bank balances denominated in RMB expose the
Group to foreign exchange risk. If the RMB had strengthened/weakened
by 1% against the HKS with all other variables held constant, profit
for the year ended 31 March 2015 would have been approximately
HKS$1,963,000 (2014: HKS$1,964,000) higher/lower, mainly as a result of
foreign exchange gains/losses on translation of RMB denominated cash
and bank balances.

The foreign currency exchange exposure on assets and liabilities
denominated in United States Dollars is considered to be minimal as
Hong Kong Dollars is currently pegged to United States Dollars.
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(@) THERE (&)
(i) BeRERAAENXEAR

3 FINANCIALR AANA T (Cont'd)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)
(a) Market risk (Contd)
(if) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

74

Except for bank deposits and bank loans, details of which are disclosed
in Note 16 and Note 19 respectively, the Group has no other significant
interest-bearing assets or liabilities.

The Group's bank deposits and bank loans are subject to variable
rates which expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. The
Group manages its interest rate risk by performing regular reviews and
continually monitoring its interest rate exposures. The Group has not
used any interest rate swaps to hedge its exposure to interest rate risk.

If the market interest rates for short-term bank deposits and bank loans
had been 50 basis points (2014: 50 basis points) higher/lower with all
other variables held constant, the Group's profit for the year ended
31 March 2015 would have been approximately HK$968,000 (2014:
HK$3,012,000) higher/lower.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)
(b) Credit risk

3 HMERRERE (8)

3.1 BBEREE (&)
(b) IZEER

(c)

Credit risk arises from trade and bills receivables, deposits and other
receivables, derivative financial instruments and cash and bank balances.

At 31 March 2015 and 2014, substantially all the cash and bank balances as
detailed in Note 16 are held in major financial institutions located in Hong
Kong, the PRC, Macau and Vietnam; all derivative financial instruments are
also entered into with major financial institutions, which management
believes are of high credit quality. Management does not expect any losses
arising from non-performance by these financial institutions.

The Group has policies in place to ensure that sales are made to customers
with appropriate credit histories and the Group performs periodic credit
evaluations of its customers. Credit quality of customers is assessed based on
their financial position, past default history and other factors. Normally the
Group does not require collateral from trade debtors. The existing debtors
have no significant defaults in the past. The Group's historical experience in
collection of trade and other receivables generally falls within the recorded
allowances and the Directors are of the opinion that adequate provision for
uncollectible receivables has been made.

Liquidity risk
Prudent liquidity risk management includes maintaining sufficient cash and
the availability of funding through adequate committed credit facilities.

The Group's primary cash requirements are for additions of and upgrades
to property, plant and equipment, purchases of land, capital injections into
its subsidiaries, and payments for purchases and operating expenses. The
Group finances its working capital requirements through funds generated
from its operations, bank loans and other borrowings.

The Group’s policy is to monitor current and expected liquidity requirements
regularly to ensure it maintains sufficient cash and cash equivalents and has
available funding through adequate amount of committed credit facilities
to meet its working capital requirements.

The tables below analyse the Group’s and the Company’s financial liabilities
into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the
balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed
in the tables are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.
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3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)
(c) Liquidity risk (Contd)

HeBRENE (B)

3 BHEREBEE (&)
3.1 MERKBEER (&)
(©) RmEEREE ()

(i) Group (i) &=5E

Within 3 months
3fEA R
HK$'000
FET

At 31 March 2015: m2015¢3H31 B:
Bank loans and interest thereon TERREREEZFE 989,175
Trade and bills payables FEHHE IYNE S 746,932
Accruals and other payables FEFHIE B K HE e FIE 305,838
Amount due to an associate AR ASNEIE/ e 4,574
2,046,519

At 31 March 2014: 72014538318 :
Trade and bills payables FERBRR R R 839,467
Accruals and other payables FESHIE B R H th B FIE 391,089
Amount due to an associate AN ANCIE | 6,030
1,236,586

The table below analyses the Group's derivative financial instruments TRAAEEEEARRAE

which will be settled on a gross basis into relevant maturity groupings

based on the remaining period at the balance sheet to the contractual

maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual

BRZIHR ZNBRBEZIAE
MEEFEZITESRMTIAZ
DI RERFPEBZEERE

undiscounted cash flows. HERTERSRE ©
Less Between Between
than 1 1and 3 3 months Over
month months and 1 year 1 year Total
SIER 1Z3(8A8 3EBAZE1E 15F0E st
HK$’000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$’000
FHET FHET FHET FHET FHET
At 31 March 2015: R201563A31H :
Forward currency contracts: REIEEEH
Inflow mA - 78,919 634,975 - 713,894
Outflow e - (77,535) (620,280) - (697,815)
At 31 March 2014: 154\20145:3}3 318 :
Forward currency contracts: REFEEAH
Inflow mA 470,391 1,010,000 1,231,944 - 2,712,335
Outflow pitan (468,676) (1,006,940) (1,248,517) - (2,724133)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont'd)
(c) Liquidity risk (Contd)

3 MBEBEE ()
3.1 MEEREER ()

© et (&)

(i) Company (i) &2H

Within 3 months
AR
HK$’000
F#&T

At 31 March 2015: 72015%F3A31H :
Bank borrowings and interest thereon RITERRE L EE ZF S 788,894
Accruals and other payables FERTIE B R H b ERFRIA 6,061
Amounts due to subsidiaries AL ENGIE/SE 1,661,638
2,456,593

At 31 March 2014: 72014538318 :
Accruals and other payables FEFTIB B RE M EFIR 4,064
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERT M B AR FRIA 631,223
635,287

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure
to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the
amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue
new shares, draw down or repay debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors capital on the basis
of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as total interest bearing debt divided
by total capital. Total interest bearing debt includes bank loans and bills payables
as shown in the consolidated balance sheet, and total capital is the amount of

‘'equity” as shown in the consolidated balance sheet. The gearing ratios were

3.2 ESREKRER

AEEZESERBRARELAKE
BLM B 2 - UARBCRIRME R - [
B AR S A A 2 flas - Wik
FREZBEAEBIAREESKA o

BTHRFSAHBERERE - AEEA
EEABRABRRRN ZBESE [
BRBEES  BITHR - RERE
BIEF

BREMFRER  AEEAERGE
LRERER o b KIRIRE BB
REBRIABABETH - St REBA
HEREaEERBRMIIZRTE
REENEBUARBERABEREAE
ERERMIZ [#] - EXRARLL

as follows: = -
2015 2014
20155 20144F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Bank loans IRITER 987,911 =
Bills payables ERER 46,187 54,046
Total interest bearing debt FHEEGEEE 1,034,098 54,046
Total capital BREEE 3,494,409 3,938,813
Gearing ratio BEARAEHR 29.6% 1.4%

The gearing ratio increased as the Group entered into several bank borrowing

arrangements in the current year.

R A SR B A TS T AR AT
R - FUCAARR B -
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IAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) SEMBRRMET ()

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd) 3 HEEKRER (F)

3.3 Fair value estimation 3.3 AAEME
The table below analyses the Group's financial instruments carried at fair value TREFIRET 2 A 2 BTG E R
as at 31 March 2015, by level of the inputs to valuation techniques used to 8 AN BFH D TAEER2015F3A4
measure fair value. Such inputs are categorised into three levels within a fair BNHUAREIRZERMIA - HA
value hierarchy as follows: BERUAT=EAAEERSHE :
Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities - HREEXBEEEERM S 2R
(level 1). B CREHAR) (F1E) -
Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable - BTEEBREREIHREN  ZE
for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that ENMBEZAIBRE KA -
is, derived from prices) (level 2). AREE (RNflnER) oM
(BREER) (F2/E) -
Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data - BEMBGBWIFEBAEEMS
(that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3). HgErzEaA (BNFETHERHA)
(F3E) -
The following table presents the Group's assets and liabilities that are measured TRIRAEER2015F383181%
at fair value at 31 March 2015. AABEEZEERAE -
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F1E F2[E 3 st

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FTERT FTEx FTERT FTEx

Assets EE
Derivative financial instruments (Note 15)  $T4& &8 T A (MfzE15) = 2,639 = 2,639
Available-for-sale financial assets (Note 11) AJft HE&E S FEE
(Mfzx11)
— Equity securities —Ems s 86 - - 86
— Club debentures — SHES - 1,741 = 1,741
86 4,380 - 4,466
Liabilities aE
Derivative financial instruments (Note 15) T4 & @ T A (FfE15) - (2,349) - (2,349)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd) 3 BBEREBEE (&)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Cont’d) 3.3 A REMAE (&)
The following table presents the Group's assets and liabilities that are measured TR RAEBR20146F3 4318 1%
at fair value at 31 March 2014. AAENEZEENRERE -
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
%1 FE E3[E 5t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT THET THET THET

Assets BE
Derivative financial instruments (Note 15)  $T4 & @ T A (FtzE15) - 1,655 - 1,655
Available-for-sale financial assets (Note 11) At HESRIEE
(BE11)
- Equity securities — RS2 57 - - 57
— Club debentures —S#EE5 - 1,741 - 1,741
57 3,396 = 3,453
Liabilities aE
Derivative financial instruments (Note 15)  $7T4 &gt T A (B{5E15) - (23,388) - (23,388)
There were no transfers between levels 1 and 2 during the year. FRNFIEEEG 2 B R o
(a) Financial instruments in level 1 (a) ZEE1ERZHTA
The fair values of financial instruments traded in active markets are based EERMBSEENERMIANA
on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date. A market is regarded as REEREEEAERANMS
active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange, B IR o & WS AT BN A0 E Bf
dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and RBHRGM - X5 &4
those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions XAAT  EERBEXEER
on an arm’s length basis. The quoted market price used for financial assets BES MzEFREREREZAT
held by the Group is the closing bid price. These instruments are included RPEEETHEBRMER NS
in level 1. Instruments included in level 1 comprise equity investments RE - ZMBWERERE - K
traded on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and are classified as SEFENSREENTISRE
available-for-sale financial assets. RETERRE - WETEBRE
EFEIE - TERECFIERE
EBERBBEXSHE R ARE
RERXG UHERAHEES
(b) Financial instruments in level 2 (b) TEE2ERZ /T A
The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market BREEERMSEENSHIA
(for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is determined by using valuation (BlanszNMTAETR) A REE
techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the use of observable FABERNEE - HERMNE
market data where it is available and rely as little as possible on entity ENAAEERMSEE (nE)
specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument BEDKBEEOFEMHE - &0
are observable, the instrument is included in level 2. FE—SRmIANAARBEMR

MMEERBARABREE
AZERTAIIARE -
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HeBRENE (B)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd) 3 MEARERE (8)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Cont’d) 3.3 AREME (&)
If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, W —IAS %I E A AN FEAR IR P E
the instrument is included in level 3. R EE - BlZer LA AZE3
@ o
Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include: AU GESRTANSEGHAERITE
& :
Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments. - EEATANMSREIRIE
The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is determined using - REHMNEARMAREBEINAE
forward exchange rates at the balance sheet date, with the resulting value EBBERAPNEHEREE
discounted back to present value. MATSEETEEEE -
Other techniques, such as discounted cash flow analysis, are used to - HEW - Sl EReRESD
determine fair value for the remaining financial instruments. - AAEEE#REBRIANR
REE -
3.4 Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities 3A4EELREENSREAERS
(a) Financial assets (a) ZFRIEE
The following financial assets are subject to offsetting, enforceable master Ty emEETEIE  ATHiT4
netting arrangement and similar agreements. BIRZHNELIG SRR -

Related amounts
of recognised

financial

liabilities not set

Gross amounts off in the
of recognised balance sheet

financial assets Y RIEBEEBR
BEER HENERER Net amounts

CREEATE SREaEHBELE FE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET FHT
At 31 March 2015: M201563H31H :
Derivative financial assets PTESRMEE 2,548 (2,349) 199
At 31 March 2014: 72014F3H31H :
Derivative financial assets TESREE 764 (764) =
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d) 3 BEERKBRERE (#)
3.4 Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities (Cont’d) 34 KHERMEENERMEE (B)

(b) Financial liabilities
The following financial liabilities are subject to offsetting, enforceable master
netting arrangement and similar agreements.

Gross amounts
of recognised

(b) EHAE
TIEemAaERIEN  THRITE
B PR AR Z A RR o

Related amounts
of recognised
financial assets
not set off in the

financial balance sheet
liabilities WAEBERBEX
BRER KM EER Net amounts
cRAEAE SREEHRBESE REE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FERT FET
At 31 March 2015: 7M201563H31H :
Derivative financial liabilities TESRAR 2,349 (2,349) =
At 31 March 2014: R2014%3A318 :
Derivative financial liabilities PTHESRAE 18,461 (764) 17,697

For the financial assets and liabilities subject to enforceable master netting
agreements or similar arrangements above, each agreement between
the Group and the counterparty allows for net settlement of the relevant
financial assets and liabilities when both elect to settle on a net basis. In
the absence of such an election, financial assets and liabilities will be settled
on a gross basis, however, each party on the master netting agreement or
similar agreement will have the option to settle all such amounts on a net
basis in the event of default of the other party.

An event of default under the terms of the above-mentioned agreements
includes failure by a party to make payment when due; failure by a party to
perform any obligation required by the agreement (other than payment);
or bankruptcy.

HRZATMITAE R SRR Z
FRBRNEREEMEE  AREHE
HF T ZHENBNHRDRTFEES
REBRFEEEGHENBRT -
HRNEREENAEEFEE -1
BRAEIWEENR  REREENAR
RIREBELEGE  BRFRBEN
BLUBENS OB AEREES—TTE
W RERMASBINFREE

RIBA LR R BEIGER - ENEHE
B—HEIMERENFK  —FTRE
R A% 00 5 B 1T 1 8 R E VIR & 75
(BRATSREN) - SRBREE -

BXRGEBERERAT 2014/2015 EERE 81



FINANCIAL INFORMATION
BEEN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical

experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are

believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting

accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results.

The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material

adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial

year are addressed below.

82

(a) Impairment of interests in associates

Management regularly reviews the recoverability of the Group's interests in
associates, in particular when they consider objective evidence of impairment
exists, such as a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the interests
in associates, significant adverse changes in the market environment, and the fair
value of the assets held by the associates. Appropriate impairment for estimated
irrecoverable amounts is recognised in the income statement when there is
objective evidence that the asset is impaired.

In determining the recoverable amount of an interest in associates, the
management has considered both the value in use and fair value less cost to
disposal. In determining value-in-use, an entity estimates either: (a) its share of
the present value of the estimated future cash flows expected to be generated
by the associates and proceeds on disposal, or (b) the present value of estimated
future cash flows expected to arise from dividends to be received and proceeds
on disposal. Any impairment loss is recognised by writing down the interests in
associates. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised to the extent that
the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases.

(b) Income taxes, deferred taxes and other taxes

(c

—

The Group is subject to income taxes in several jurisdictions. Significant
judgement is required in determining provisions for income taxes. There are
certain transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain. The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues
based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final
tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the current and deferred income tax assets
and liabilities in the period in which such determination is made.

The Group is also exposed to other taxes and duties. Significant judgement is
required in determining these provisions. Where the final outcomes of these
matters differ from the actual results, such difference will impact the provisions
made and the earnings stated in the income statement.

Provision for impairment of trade and other receivables

The Group's management determines the provision for impairment of trade and
other receivables based on an assessment of the recoverability of the receivables.
This assessment is based on the financial position, repayment history and credit
rating of its customers and other debtors and the current market condition,
and requires the use of judgements and estimates. Management reassesses the
provision at each balance sheet date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (Cont’d)

(d)

—

(e

(f)

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less estimated costs of completion and selling expenses.
These estimates are based on the current market condition and the historical
experience of manufacturing and selling products of similar nature. It could
change significantly as a result of changes in customer taste and competitor
actions in response to severe industry cycle. Management reassesses these
estimates at each balance sheet date.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful lives and related
depreciation charges for its property, plant and equipment. These estimates are
based on the historical experience of the actual useful lives of property, plant
and equipment of similar nature and functions. Management will increase the
depreciation charge where useful lives are less than previously estimated lives,
it will write-off or write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that
have been abandoned or sold. Actual economic lives may differ from estimated
useful lives. Periodic review could result in a change in depreciable lives and
therefore depreciation expense in the future periods.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment, leasehold land and land use rights

Property, plant and equipment, leasehold land and land use rights are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. The recoverable amounts have been
determined based on the higher of value-in-use calculations or fair values less
cost to disposal. These calculations require the use of judgements and estimates.

Management judgement is required in the area of asset impairment particularly
in assessing: (i) whether an event has occurred that may indicate that the related
asset values may not be recoverable; (i) whether the carrying value of an asset
can be supported by the recoverable amount, being the higher of fair value less
costs to sell or net present value of future cash flows which are estimated based
upon the continued use of the assets in the business; and (iii) the appropriate
key assumptions to be applied in preparing cash flow projections including
whether these cash flow projections are discounted using an appropriate rate.
Changing the assumptions selected by management in assessing impairment,
including the discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in the cash flow
projections, could materially affect the net present value used in the impairment
test and as a result affect the Group’s reported balance sheet and results of
operations. If there is a significant adverse change in the projected performance
and resulting future cash flow projections, it may be necessary to take an
impairment charge to the income statement.
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION
The chief operating decision-maker (“CODM") has been identified as the executive
directors of the Company collectively, who review the Group's internal reporting in
order to assess performance and allocate resources.

As all of the Group's business operations relate to the manufacturing and trading
of textile products with similar economic characteristics, the executive directors
review the performance of the Group as a single segment, which covers operations
conducted by subsidiaries in Hong Kong, Macau, the PRC and Vietnam and associates
in the PRC and Sri Lanka. The executive directors review resources allocation and
assess performance of the Group on a regular basis based on the following financial

information:

Revenue

Gross profit
Gross profit margin (%)

Operating expenses
Operating expenses/Revenue (%)

EBITDA (Note (i)

EBITDA/Revenue (%)

Finance income
Finance costs
Depreciation and amortisation
(included in cost of sales and operating expenses)
Share of profits of associates
Reversal of provision for impairment loss on
interest in an associate
Share of losses of joint ventures
Gain on disposal of interests in joint ventures
Income tax expense

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company
Net profit margin (%)

YA

EF
EFE %)

LR
KERY A (%)

B B - FE R EIHAT
w A (PHEE))

B B - FrE R EIHAT
YA %)

TN
BT
BB I ABERAR
EERX)
{58 A iR
NP AR 2
R AR AR
AEA LA AR
A 280 AR B it
FrSBiRIX

ZAYNCIE: S SR PN Lyl
A 2R (%)

HeBRENE (B)

DEBER
BERKERRECREDR/EARBNT
Ex HEHASEZAME®R - UF
BRRAEDEER °

HRAKEZXBESEREEN B
B AERUNKESNE - B
EEZRRE—DHEHNLAKEZRR
BRERER R PEEBENHE
REARNPEEM B RHBEQF
PSR ENER - AITEENERATH
BER  ERBEHARENERDER
EITRBFHE

2015 2014
20154 20144
HK$’000 HK$'000
FH&xT T
6,906,883 7,423,481
1,177,906 1,361,371
17.1% 18.3%
176,144 197,436
2.6% 2.7%
1,358,567 1,463,573
19.7% 19.7%
19,532 8,287
6,960 1,594
151,436 159,125
34,213 36,499
33,200 =
384 20,655
29,265 =
150,037 196,750
1,074,785 1,116,802
15.6% 15.0%
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e

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd) 5 2EMEHR (&)

2015 2014
20156 20144
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Total assets BEMER 5,727,165 5,353,354
Equity attributable to equity holders of the Company RARE=ITE NG 3,496,715 3,935,013
Cash and bank balances & HIRTTAE R 2,025,419 1,776,269
Borrowings EE 1,132,320 47,509
Inventories FE 965,542 1,130,742
Inventory turnover days (Note (ii)) FEBE¥E B g (M) 67 64
Trade and bills receivables R R EE 800,188 844,920
Trade and bills receivables turnover days (Note (ii) FE U BR SR R R pR A B 20 (PREG)) 43 44
Trade and bills payables R R ZER 746,932 839,467
Trade and bills payables turnover days (Note (ii)) FERTBR R R EHRAE B 2 (FREG)) 50 49

Notes: Mzt :
(i) EBITDA is defined as profit for the year before finance income, finance costs, (i) EBITDAMTEZE ARFTEIGUA - BIHSAK

A ST - rEMEHETER -

income tax expense, depreciation and amortisation.

(i) 3098 B BRI A )BT S 2 M B
TS -

(i) The turnover days are calculated based on the simple average of the beginning
of the year and the end of the year balances.

AEEPAEERHEE - RiLRE D2
WARERRZNZ B RIT

The Group's revenue represents sales of goods. An analysis of revenue by
geographical location, as determined by the destination where the products are
delivered is as follows:

2015 2014
20155 20144

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHET

PRC H 2,616,839 2,578,347
South East Asia HEae 1,942,915 1,921,760
Hong Kong aBE 629,147 1,269,707
America EM 614,268 615,532
Sri Lanka EIEEESRS 582,554 570,391
Others Hith 521,160 467,744
6,906,883 7,423,481
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HeBRENE (B)

5 SHER (&)
BRARFE S B A & B Uk A 4935%
(2014%F : 41%) ER10% (20144F : 12%)
FBEEMERFSEAMAEBRAHT DR
10% °

AL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd)
The top two customers accounted for approximately 35% (2014: 41%) and 10%
(2014: 12%), respectively, of the Group’s revenue; all other customers individually
accounted for less than 10% of the Group's revenue.

The Group’s non-current assets are located in the following geographical areas:

AEERBEE D 2 IERBEENT ¢

Group

rEE
2015 2014
20154 20144
HK$’000 HK$'000
FBxT FH&T
PRC S 1,295,745 1,219,755
Hong Kong B 75,240 73,491
Vietnam i) 196,418 12,038
Sri Lanka WEFFR 192,686 147,363
Bangladesh FANRL - 18,610
Others Hh 98 32
1,760,187 1,471,289

6 LAND USE RIGHTS

6 TiERE

The Group's interests in land use rights represent prepaid operating lease payments AEEBRTHFERAE s = ATENLE
and their net book values are analysed as follows: MHFIE - EREFES AT ¢

Group

rEE
2015 2014
20155 20144F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
At 1 April ®4A18 53,930 55,282
Currency translation differences SN BT 2 R 4 (46)
Amortisation BH (1,286) (1,306)
At 31 March M3H31R 52,648 53,930

In the PRC, held on: RAPEEE :

Land use rights of between 10 to 50 years FENT10E50%F 2 L b fF AR 52,648 53,930
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7 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

HR

7 ME-BERRE

Group rE
Leasehold
improvements,
Leasehold Plantand  furniture and Motor Computer  Construction
land Buildings  machinery equipment vehicles software  in progress Total
RENERS
HELs BF BEREE GARRE RE EREE  ERIR @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAR TEn TEx TEn TAR TEx TAx TEn
At 1 April 2013 R2013%4R1R
Cost KA 4260 1,072,084 2185323 194926 26,175 17492 31422 3,531,682
Accumulated depreciation 2iE (952) (237,086)  (1,997610) (170466) (21977) - - (2428091)
Net book amount FEFE 3308 834,998 187713 24460 4198 1749 3142 1,103,591
Year ended 31 March 2014 22014530318
ILEE
Opening net book amount ENEEFE 3308 834,998 187,713 24460 419 17492 3142 1103591
Currency translation differences NEREZE - (621) (113) (%) (42) - (951) (1822)
Additions RE - - 16,758 9,166 8199 36,745 171,365 242233
Disposals and write-off HE S - (589) (2,216) (136) (154) = - (3,095)
Depreciation ik 97) (44410) (100230) (11,083) (1,999) - - (157819)
Transfers a - 29136 88,355 7402 - = (124893) -
Closing net book amount FREESE 31 818,514 190,267 29714 10,202 54237 76943 1,183,088
At 31 March 2014 R201483831A8
Cost R 4260 1,098622 2,181,567 196,100 28,140 54,237 76943 3,639,869
Accumulated depreciation Z:HE (1,049)  (280,108)  (1,991,300) (166,386) (17,938) - - (2,456,781)
Net book amount FEFE 321 818,514 190,267 29,714 10,202 54,237 76943 1,183,088
Year ended 31 March 2015 HZ2015F38318
LEE
Opening net book amount ENREFE 3,211 818,514 190,267 29,714 10,202 54,237 76,943 1,183,088
Currency translation differences NEREZE - 160 223 (18) (12) - (416) (63)
Additions RE - - 35,733 33973 8,155 10,591 294,169 382,621
Disposals and write-off HESH - (1,657) (1,214) (1,081) (375) - - (4,327)
Depreciation ik (96) (45,068) (85,005) (16,299) (3,682) = - (150,150)
Transfers FEL - 36,395 44,604 20,561 = = (101,560) _
Closing net book amount FREESE 3,115 808,344 184,608 66,850 14,288 64,828 269,136 1,411,169
At 31 March 2015 R201583A318
Cost KA 4260 1132275 2,187,196 235,866 35,186 64,828 269,136 3,928,747
Accumulated depreciation Z:HE (1,145)  (323931)  (2,002,588) (169,016) (20,898) - - (2517,578)
Net book amount REFE 3115 808,344 184,608 66,850 14,288 64,828 269,136 1,411,169
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FEMBHRRME (B)

7 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont'd) 7 YE- BRERSE (8

The net book value of the group’s interests in leasehold land and buildings are AEERHEE T REF 2 ERRERTF
analysed as follows: BEATAT -
Group
rEE
2015 2014
20154 20144
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FHET
In Hong Kong, held on: REBRFE
Lease of between 10 to 50 years FENTI10850F 2 HE 8,869 9,403
In the PRC, held on: RABFEE
Lease of between 10 to 50 years FHNF10250F 2FHE 802,590 812,322
811,459 821,725
Depreciation expense recognised in the consolidated income statement is analysed REARERANERZITERI ST
as follows: N
Group
rEE
2015 2014
20155 20144
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Cost of sales SHE KA 146,868 155,460
General and administrative expenses — R RATERR 3,282 2,359
150,150 157,819
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

8

INTERESTS IN AND AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) SUBSIDIARIES

e
8 RKEQRZEREER

Company
ARAF
2015 2014
20154 20144
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FET FET
Non-current assets kRBEE
Unlisted shares, at cost JE TR © A 8 8
Loans to subsidiaries (Note (i) Mg AR ER (HEEG) 2,238,626 2,491,878
2,238,634 2,491,886
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries (Note (iii)) FEURF B N ml R IE (B EEG)) 2,386,738 1,300,000
Non-current liabilities FEREEE
Amount due to a subsidiary (Note (ii)) FEATBT BB 2 B3k IE (BEEG)) - 696,667
Current liabilities REBEE
Amounts due to subsidiaries (Note (ii)) FENMHIB A RIFE (MEaEdi) 1,661,638 631,223
Notes: iz -
(i) Loans to subsidiaries are unsecured and non-interest bearing. These loans have no iy WEBRARERAMEKMEERS - 28
pre-determined terms of repayment and are regarded as quasi equity contributions NEETERY  TREIAHBARE
to the subsidiaries. e ER o

(i) The amount due to a subsidiary of HKSNil (2014: HK$696,667,000) was unsecured,
non-interest bearing and was not repayable within one year.

(iii) The other amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries are unsecured, non-interest bearing

and repayable on demand.

(i) BB RARREAAZTHEIT (2014%F ¢
696,667,000/ 7T) © AEIEIF - BF B
MR —FREEEE -

(i) Efs s () B R RREAREE
BB RBREREE -
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FRIBRENE (B)

8 INTERESTS | D AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

8 RHEAR zEZEEY () FE (&)
The following is a list of the subsidiaries at 31 March 2015 and 2014 TR RR20155 E20145F3 A31H 2 M
ESFNCTE

Place of

incorporation/ Issued and fully paid Equity interest

establishment up share capital/ Equity interest attributable to non-
Name of subsidiaries and operation registered capital  attributable to the Group controlling interests Principal activities

i/ RIK BRARARZ rEE FiERE S
WEA R &8 B Bx/ ERER bR A S iR AER TEXH

2015 2014 2015 2014

20155 20144 20156 20144
Shares held directly by the Company

FAREREFERY

Pacific Textured Jersey Holdings Ltd. British Virgin Islands HKS 1 100% 100% - - Investment holding
EREUHS 1B RERR

Pacific Textiles Overseas Holdings Ltd.  British Virgin Islands HKS 1 100% 100% - - Investment holding
ERRLHS 1B RERR

Pacific HK & China Holdings Ltd. British Virgin Islands HKS 1 100% 100% - - Investment holding
ERBEUHS 1B RERR

Pacific SPM Holdings Ltd. British Virgin Islands HKS 1 100% 100% - - Investment holding
EBRARE 1B RERR

Solid Ally International Ltd. British Virgin Islands HKS 1 100% 100% - - Investment holding
EBRARE 1B RERR

Lehan Resources Ltd. British Virgin Islands HKS 1 100% 100% - - Investment holding
EBRARE 18T REER

Fast Right Group Ltd. British Virgin Islands US$1,000 100% 100% - - Investment holding

ERAEEERAF EBRAFE 1,000 7T RARR

Goodscore Ltd. British Virgin Islands US$1 100% 100% - - Investment holding

SEERAT EBRAFE %7 RERR

Product Champion Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 100% 100% - - Investment holding
EBRAFE 1% RERR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

8

INTERESTS IN AND AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)
The following is a list of the subsidiaries at 31 March 2015 and 2014: (Cont'd)

Name of subsidiaries

WEARER

Shares held indirectly:
BEEERY :

Pacific Textiles Limited

EAGBERAR

Pacific SPM Investment Limited

BEAABHBEEERAT

Pacific Overseas Textiles Macao
Commercial Offshore Limited

BREMNGERMBFRE RS
BRAF

Pacific (Panyu) Textiles Limited

EX (BB) HBEFERAR

Pacific GT Limited

PCGT Limited

Pacific Crystal Textiles Limited

South Shining Limited
HEERAH

Place of
incorporation/
establishment
and operation
i/ RIk
B

Hong Kong
0

Hong Kong
A

Macau

A

PRC
E

British Virgin Islands
RERUES

Hong Kong
BB

Vietnam

il

British Virgin Islands
EBRARE

Issued and fully paid

up share capital/
registered capital
BRARAEZ
RE/ERER

HK$103,000,000
103,000,00078 7T

HKS1
18T

MOP1,030,000
1,030,0008 75

U5$89,700,000
89,700,003 7T

US$19,025,000
19,025,000% 70

HK$3,900,000
39000008 7T

Registered/

Paid up capital
U5$48,000,000/
U5$48,000,000
i/ BRRA
48,000,000%7C /
480000005 T

Uss1
Eo

Ti%ﬁlJmesE;ﬂzomiaﬁm = ZISﬁ

BRe

Equity interest

attributable to the Group
rEE

bR AR
2015 2014
2015% 20146
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
95% 95%
71.25% 71.25%
71.25% 71.25%
95% 95%

(%)

Equity interest
attributable to non-
controlling interests

FERER

R AR
2015 2014
20155 20145
5% 59%
28.75% 2875%
28.75% 2875%
5% 59%

Principal activities

TEEK

Trading of textile
products

DBmES

Investment holding

RARK

Trading of textile
products

DRmES

Manufacturing and
trading of textile
products

NEmBERES

Investment holding

RARK

Investment holding

RARK

Manufacturing and
trading of textile
products

nERRERES

Investment holding

BARR
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HeBRENE (B)

9 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND AMOUNT DUE TO AN ASSOCIATE 9 REBEARZEBRNEBEE AR ZEN
M
(a) Share of net assets and goodwill (a) HEEEFEEEE
2015 2014
2015% 201445
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT T
SPM Automotive Textile FIEKR (BMN) REBEHEED
Co,, Ltd. (“SPM Automotive”) BRAR (METIEARD 30,134 35,019
Textured Jersey Lanka Limited (“PT Sri Lanka”) Textured Jersey Lanka Limited
([PTHTER 1) 192,686 147,363
222,820 182,382
Movement of share of net assets of associates are as follows: DEMERRFEEZEBMT
2015 2014
20155 20144F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHERT FHET
At 1 April W4A1R 182,382 171,771
Currency translation difference NS A T = % (26,975) (25,888)
Share of profit paRl=piaw 34,213 36,499
Reversal of provision for impairment loss on R—EBE R R 2
interest in an associate TELRE B 1R B B O 33,200 -
At 31 March M3A318 222,820 182,382
The particulars of the associates of the Group as at 31 March 2015 and 2014, 20154 E22014F3A31IH 2 A E B
which are held indirectly by the Company, are as follows: BENR (AARREERE) 25
BT e
Place of incorporation/ Issued and fully paid up Equity interest
establishment and share capital/registered  attributable to the
Name of associates operation capital Group Principal activities
R ERTRARZ rEE
- NCIEE BB A fE A PEE R A RE 22 FTEEK
2015 2014
20156 2014%F
SPM Automotive PRC US$7,500,000 33% 33%  Manufacturing and trading
FIEX F 7,500,000 7T of vehicles related textile
products
FERENEMEERE S
PT Sri Lanka Sri Lanka Rs2,749,266,000 40% 40%  Manufacturing and trading
PTHTEH R HEEF 2,749,266,00067T 2B RE L of textile products
mmmEERE S
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

9 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND AMOUNT DUE TO AN ASSOCIATE (Cont’d) 9 REEQNTAZEZRRBEELNTIZEN

M (&)
(a) Share of net assets and goodwill (Cont’d) (a) HMEEEFEERE (F)
SPM Automotive is an unlisted company in the PRC and there is no quoted FIEARR—HFBEIFELETAR A
market price available for its shares. It H AR I 48 BT FA T35 SR AE o
At 31 March 2015, the quoted market value of the Group's interest in PT Sri Lanka, 2015638318 + AN & B RAPTHT
which is listed on the Colombo Stock Exchange in Sri Lanka, was HK$373,803,000 BN (—HRITEN SR RIEE
(2014: HK$245,894,000) and the carrying amount of the group's interest was 5RX S EMB AR B &= TR
HK$192,686,000 (2014: HK$147,363,000). M {E 373,803,000/ 7T (2014 :

245,894,000/ JT) R AN K B Em 2
B8R T 18 /4192,686,00078 7T (20144F :
147,363,000/ 7C) °

There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group's interests in the REERBEARNERTEXE A
associates. & o
Summarised financial information for associates e N Al ERE
Set out below are the summarised financial information for SPM Automotive and AT EFI{E T B K RPTHT 2 8 R DA%
PT Sri Lanka, which are accounted for using the equity method. SEANRNTEERTE -

SPM Automotive PT Sri Lanka Total

FIER PTHTEB & st
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014

20155 2014 20158 20144  2015%F 20144
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HKS$'000 HK$000  HK$'000
TEx THxT THx TET THERT TET
Summarised balance sheet EEEEREBE

Non-current assets IEREEE 18,587 22,822 196,392 184,799 214,979 207,621
Current assets mENEE 107,145 121564 312,721 316467 419,866 438,031
Non-current liabilities EREBERE - = 14,309 11,541 14,309 11,541
Current liabilities TEN B fE 34,416 38267 85,954 111,182 120,370 149,449
Net assets BEFE 91,316 106,119 408,850 378,543 500,166 484,662

Summarised income statement Uz RGE

Revenue WA 199,826 267,144 800,370 751,668 1,000,196 1,018,812
Profit for the year FERF 8,497 26,776 78,522 69,157 87,019 95,933
Other comprehensive FEHEMEENE

income for the year - - - - - -
Total comprehensive FETHEWGAE

income for the year 8,497 26,776 78,522 69,157 87,019 95,933
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

9 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND AMOUNT DUE TO AN ASSOCIATE (Cont'd) 9 MRBEARZEZRABE QR ZEN
;IE (&)

(a) Share of net assets and goodwill (Cont’d) (a) PMEEEFEERE (F)
Summarised financial information for associates (Contd) BEL R HERE (&)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information of the associates L E AR FER S EEANEE
to the carrying value of the Group's interest in associates. Bt N m e AR EER AR -

SPM Automotive PT Sri Lanka Total
EDIN-N PTEHIEMF @t
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
20155 20149F 20158  20145F  2015%F 20144
HK$'000 HKS'000  HK$’000 HKS'000  HK$'000 HKS$'000
THERT T FTHER FHT THERT T
Opening net assets at 1 April PAAVBEYZFEE 106,119 04,983 378,543 351,068 484,662 446,051
Currency translation differences GNEE 0 B = 2 (719) (418) 2,228 141 1,509 (277)
Profit for the year EEHH 8,497 26,776 78,522 69,157 87,019 95,933
Dividends [% 8. (22,581) (15,222) (50,443) (41,823) (73,024) (57,045)
Closing net assets at 31 March ~ R3F31BERFEE 91,316 106119 408,850 378543 500,166 484,662
Net assets attributable to REBELFEE
the Group (33%; 40%) (33%  40%) 30,134 35,019 163,540 151,417 193,674 186,436
Goodwill S - - 155,297 155,297 155,297 155,297
Less: Accumulated impairment o BsHRE - - (122,097) (155297) (122,097) (155,297)
Less: Unrealised gain on sale B HEME T
of machinery to associate RNElZ REHR W - - (4,054) (4,054) (4,054) (4,054)
Interests in associates AN A e 30,134 35,019 192,686 147,363 222,820 182,382
Dividends received B & A RIS
from associates 7,452 5,023 20,177 16,729 27,629 21,752

(b)

(c)

94

W

REBHRME ()

Amounts due from associates

The amounts due from associates are unsecured, non-interest bearing and
repayable on demand. The amounts are denominated in USS.

Amount due to an associate

The amount due to an associate is unsecured, non-interest bearing and

repayable on demand. The amount is denominated in RMB.

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited 2014 / 2015 Annual Report

(b) FEUIERE N RFRIR

FEURHE & R R FRIB AR - EAE

YL

(c) BERHE AT
EREERT

_1._|

RIEIR  IAETTIIE ©

FIE
FRREER - EHE

MAERER  MARKETIE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

10 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

10 REE QAT ZER

Group
rEE
2015 2014
20154 20144
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Share of net assets (Note (a)) AMEEEFE (@) = 15,655
Amount due from a joint venture (Note (b)) YA & ARFIE (FizEb) - 2,955
- 18,610

(a) Share of net assets
Movements of share of net assets of joint ventures are as follows:

(a) DIHEEFE
DERERTEEFEIEHNT :

Group

rEE
2015 2014
20155 20144F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
At 1 April ®4A18 15,655 35,179
Additions NE - 776
Currency translation differences SN BT R 4 355
Return of capital BEaiRiE (776) =
Share of losses AMEEE (384) (20,655)
Disposal HEEE (14,499) =
At 31 March M3A31H - 15,655

In March 2015, the Group completed the disposal of its entire interests in joint
ventures at a consideration of approximately HK$51,040,000, and recognised a
gain of HK$29,265,000.

As at 31 March 2014, there were no contingent liabilities relating to the Group's
interests in the joint ventures.

R2015F3R - REBEKHERE
RAlZFBEEEEZPEHE R
#9 /51,040,000 T I 2 7 R UK
29,265,000/8 7T °

1=

B oy I

S

R2014F3A8318 » EEAARXEER
AR RIESEEZIBRE -
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HeBRENE (B)

10 REEQRZERE (8)

(a) HHEEFE (8)
R2015F &2014F3A318 » 8% AA

AL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

10 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Cont'd)

(a) Share of net assets (Cont’d)
The particulars of the joint ventures at 31 March 2015 and 2014 are as follows:

el

(b)

Place of
incorporation/
establishment and

Issued and fully paid

up share capital/

FIEWT ¢

Equity interest
attributable to the

Name of joint ventures operation registered capital Group Principal activities
31 g o v ERITRHAEZZ rEE
BEDRERE BEEi B BRA & G R AR FTEXEK
2015 2014
20155 20144
Amigo Bangladesh Ltd Bangladesh Taka$390,000,000 - 51% Investment holding
EIEVETilET 390,000,00035 & BB
CPAT (Singapore) Private Ltd Singapore US$21,440,000 - 51% Investment holding
IS 21,440,000 7T BB
Fortune Joy Investment Ltd British Virgin Islands Uss100 - 51% Investment holding
BRI EGR AT EEELHE 1003 7T BB
King Jumbo Investment Ltd British Virgin Islands US$15,000,000 - 51% Investment holding
REBRLES 15,000,0003 7T BB
Kingston Bangladesh Ltd Bangladesh Taka$390,000,000 - 51% Investment holding
FINR RN E 390,000,0005& REER
Queenston Bangladesh Ltd Bangladesh Taka$100,000 - 51% Investment holding
F R AN 100,000+ REER

Amount due from a joint venture

(b) BREEARKRE

2014638318 @ [BIRAERRIFIES
EIEA - EF S RERTERY - 64
SEETIAFETTEHE ©

As at 31 March 2014, the amount due from a joint venture was unsecured,
non-interest bearing and without fixed repayment terms. The amount was
denominated in US Dollars.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

11 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

e
"N TRHESHEE -

Group

rEE
2015 2014
20154 20144
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
Listed equity securities in Hong Kong BE LT 2ESE 86 57
Club debentures SHEES 1,741 1,741
1,827 1,798
At 1 April R4A1H 1,798 1,781
Fair value gains (Note 18) ARERE (FFE18) 29 17
At 31 March M3A31H 1,827 1,798
Quoted market value of listed securities FHEEHRME 86 57

The fair values of listed equity securities are based on closing bid prices at active

market. The fair values of club debentures are based on second hand market prices.

See Note 3.3 for further information on fair value.

Available-for-sale financial assets are denominated in HK Dollars.

S AR EREE RS
BEET - eEESZ AR BHRES
FHBEET - R EAMAREBY
R—HEH o

AHHESREERBITIIE -

12 INVENTORIES 12 78

Group

rEE
2015 2014
20154 20144
HK$’000 HK$'000
FBxT FHET
Raw materials B 679,391 805,270
Work-in-progress RS 181,453 168,558
Finished goods 2URK 104,698 156,914
965,542 1,130,742
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FEMBHRRME (B)

13 EWRERRERE

Group

rEE
2015 2014
20154 20144
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FHET
Trade receivables FEUR BR X 716,101 736,947
Bills receivables R = 1% 94,996 114,638
811,097 851,585
Less: provision for impairment of trade receivables L RS BRFOR BB R (10,909) (6,665)
800,188 844,920

The carrying amounts of trade and bills receivables approximate their fair values.

The majority of the Group's sales are with credit terms of 30 to 60 days. Trade and
bills receivables, based on goods delivery dates, were aged as follows:

EUEAERREZREERLRAER

4+

Eo

AEBEABOHEZEEHRN F30E60
R BRRERARZERZREKRZE RN

A O 2x

HEASSIMT -

Group

AEE
2015 2014
20155 20144F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT FHET
0 - 60 days 0— 60K 701,892 697,827
61 - 120 days 61 — 120K 103,805 147,836
121 days — 1 year 121K — 14 5,400 5,260
Over 1 year BB F - 662
811,097 851,585
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

e
13 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Cont'd) 13 EWRRRZERE (H) '

The carrying amounts of the Group's trade and bills receivables were denominated AEBERBERRZEZEEEBERZRLT
in the following currencies: EHEFI(E
Group
AEE
2015 2014
20154 20144
HK$'000 HKS$'000
TET FET
HKS BT 555,208 601,297
uss ET 211,261 227,847
RMB AR 44,628 22,441
811,097 851,585
The top two customers accounted for approximately 35% (2014: 42%) and 17% (2014: BERMARED R AEBREIKERRE
17%), respectively, of the Group's trade and bills receivables; all other customers 35% (20144 : 42%) E217% (20144 :
individually accounted for less than 10% of the Group's trade and bills receivables. 17%) - PiEEH M= @55 4N £ B fE U

IR R EIE D P10% ©

At 31 March 2015, trade receivables of HK$42,382,000 (2014: HK$46,446,000) were 201553 310 » @ HIB I & = ERE
past due but not considered to be impaired. These relate to a number of customers 2 JE U BR 2k A42,382,0005 7T (20144 :
for whom there is no recent history of default. These trade receivables are aged as 46,446,00078 7T ) o H EA 3T HA P S HE /K
follows: R CEF B o ZFERRR 2R
o
Group
AEE
2015 2014
20154 2014%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Past due by: 28 H
0 - 60 days 0— 60K 42,382 46,446
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HeBRENE (B)

13 EWRARRERE ()
2015438318 BEM= " EH M
B K B 455 2 B UK BR 3Kk 544,481,000 7T
(20144F : 49,284,000/ 7T) ° FA2015%F3 A
318 - B # £ 58 410,909,000 7T (2014
F 1 66650008 7T) - NEBRAEINHE
AR AR AT E - ZERWERZ

13 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Cont'd)
At 31 March 2015, trade receivables of HK$44,481,000 (2014: HK$49,284,000) were
concluded to be partially impaired and were provided for. The amount of the
provision was HK$10,909,000 at 31 March 2015 (2014: HKS$6,665,000). The Group
considers that a portion of these impaired receivables is recoverable. These trade
receivables are aged as follows:

BRESTT

Group

rEE
2015 2014
20154 20144
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT

Past due by: B

0 - 60 days 0— 60K 33,572 42,618
61 - 120 days 61 — 120K 6,976 2,064
121 days - 1 year 121Kk — 14 3,933 4512
Over 1 year BiBF = 90
44,481 49,284

Movements in the Group's provision for impairment of trade receivables are as

AEERBRESIELRERBZE2Y

follows: /(U N

Group

AEE
2015 2014
20155 2014%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
At 1 April R4818 6,665 13,736
Currency translation differences SN ET 2R (35) (537)
Provision, net B 558 4,328 676
Written off Hiss (49) (7,210)
At 31 March R3A318 10,909 6,665

The creation and release of provision for impaired receivables have been included in

BERERBRE BN R RERER A

distribution and selling expenses in the consolidated income statement. Amounts REWRERZDERIEERETIAN - 5T A
charged to the allowance account are generally written off when there is no BERZFIE—RERBEEKEIEIN

expectation of recovering additional cash. IR RS o

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of
the receivables mentioned above. The Group does not hold any collateral as security.

RBEAH  SAEERRS LREK
R IREE - AEE IS EFHEME
Mo tErER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

.
14 DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 14 && - BAREREGERRIE
Group
TEE
2015 2014
20155 20144
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FAT
Rental, utility and other deposits e 2ARBREMZS 16,086 2,722
Prepayments for purchase of inventories BEIFEENNKIEA 24,844 16,243
Prepayments for construction work T IR R BT RIE
and purchase machinery 40,160 31,481
Prepayments for acquisition of land use rights W B £ 4 {55 R AE TR A 3ROR 31,563 =
Other prepayments HE MBS RIE 4,615 2,223
Value-added tax recoverables A] Yg B 12 (E 57 44,303 21,468
Interest receivables FE WS 8,182 =
Others HAth 16,756 17,423
186,509 91,560
Less non-current portion: TIETRENER D
Prepayments for construction work BETENEERE 2 ANIE
and purchase of machinery (40,160) (31,481)
Prepayments for acquisition of land use right L B + 3 B FR A 2 TR ST SRIE (31,563) =
(71,723) (31,481)
Current portion mENER D 114,786 60,079
Deposits, value-added tax recoverables, interest receivables and other receivables e AJUREGER - RS R E A
are denominated in the following currencies: FEYGRIEIR N5 EHEHE -
Group
rEE
2015 2014
20155 20144
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
RMB AR 3,456 554
uss =TT 35,871 22,685
HKS BT 16,989 2,202
VND A 29,011 16,172
85,327 41,613
The carrying amounts of deposits, value-added tax recoverables, interest receivables Te - ATWEEAER - BRFEREM
and other receivables approximate their fair values. JEWGRIE 2 BREEEA QA R ERSE o
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of RBERE ZTAGEERRR LR
deposits, value-added tax recoverables, interest receivables and other receivables. & - AR EHEER - B B R E A E
The Group does not hold any collateral as security. WHERR 2 BREE - AE BN EEE W

ER R
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15 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Forward foreign currency contracts RARSNE S K
— Assets —BE
- Liabilities =

ReMBREMNT (B)
15 fTE€mMIA

Group
AEE
2015
201545
HK$'000
TET

2,639
(2,349)

2014
20144
HK$'000
FHT

1,655
(23,388)

The notional principal amount of the Group’s outstanding forward foreign currency
contracts at the balance sheet date is HK$697,815,000 (2014: HK$2,726,410,000).

The maximum exposure to credit risk of the derivative financial assets at the balance
sheet date is the carrying value of the derivative assets in the balance sheet.

16 CASH AND BANK BALANCES

NEER  REBZ ABHRBINES
42 % % 7N 4 %8 /697,815,000 7T (2014

£ : 2,726,410,00057T) ©

REER TEEREEZRAEER
RABERAZITEEEZREE -

16 RERBITHEER

Group Company
rEE FN/NE|

2015 2014 2015 2014
20154 20144 20154 20144
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT F#&T FHT
Cash at bank and on hand RITRFHRE 843,817 1,173,965 132,924 21,654
Short-term bank deposits EHIRITIER 1,181,602 602,304 - =
2,025,419 1,776,269 132,924 21,654

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the balance sheet date is the carrying value
of the cash and bank balances in the balance sheet.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

16 CASH AND BANK BALANCES (Cont'd)

Cash and bank balances are denominated in the following currencies:

16 RERBITER (H)

e

B RIRITHEBIZATE¥IIE ¢

Group Company
rEE ¥ /NG|

2015 2014 2015 2014
201545 20144 20155 20144
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHIT FHET T
uss e 780,031 987,948 132,179 9,777
HKS ow 511,902 506,481 745 11,877
RMB AR 731,179 278,864 = -
Others Hi 2,307 2,976 = =
2,025,419 1,776,269 132,924 21,654

The Group's cash and bank balances denominated in RMB are primarily deposited
with banks in the PRC. The conversion of these RMB denominated balances into
foreign currencies and the remittance of funds out of the PRC are subject to rules

and regulations on foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC Government.

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates
ranging from 0.70% to 2.15% per annum at 31 March 2015 (2014: 1.00% to 2.09%

per annum).

The effective annual interest rate and maturities of short-term bank deposits at 31

March 2015 and 2014 are as follows:

Effective annual interest rate
Maturities

BERERN =X
A

AEBEAAREINEZ RS RIRITHER
BEBEBRRPBEZRIT - BZFAR
BB 2R RINE L R EREH
BIIRHNA 8 ST T BB 8 2 S1 EE &
HAIRIRTE -

RITIH £ IRIBITE B IF 3R R A F BB
BFE  R2015F3A31BERENT &
£F0.70%%2.15% (20145 : FF1.00%%
2.09%) °

20155 B120144F3 8310 » LHIR1T1F
REBRENREFBHAMT :

Group

rEE
2015 2014
20155 2014%F
2.02% 1.27%
1-180 days 1-60 days
1-180K 1-60K
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17 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM
(a) Share capital

HeBRENE (B)

17 BAERBAHE

(a)

&N

Group and Company

AEEEADNT
2015 2014
2015 20144F
Number Number
of share of share
(thousands) HK$’000  (thousands) HKS$'000
REEE D& R
(F35t) FET (F&H) FHET
Authorised: JETE ¢
Shares of HK$0.001 each FREE0.001E T2
ieh) 5,000,000 5,000 5,000,000 5,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRET
Beginning of year F4 1,446,423 1,446 1,442,942 1,443
Issue of shares under share RIR B2
options scheme BTG, = = 4,700 4
Share repurchases & =1 & - - (1,219) (1)
End of year R 1,446,423 1,446 1,446,423 1,446
(b) Share premium (b) BADERE

(c

104

—

In accordance with the Companies Law, Cap. 22 of the Cayman Islands, the
share premium is distributable to the shareholders of the Company, provided
that immediately following the date on which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as and when

they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

Share option scheme

The Group's share option scheme was approved and adopted by of the Company

by means of a shareholders’ written resolution on 27 April 2007.

In July 2007, the Board of Directors approved the first grant of options to eligible
full-time employees to subscribe for a total of 22,820,000 shares of the Company
at an exercise price of Hk$5.04 per share with vesting periods of 3 years. These
options were exercisable from 18 July 2010 to 17 July 2017 and should expire
on 18 July 2017. As at 31 March 2014, all of these share options under the first

grant were fully exercised.

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited 2014 / 2015 Annual Report

(c)

RERSHERRVEFNE - KkiE
BAHED IR T ARBRR - HERERE
BRRERSERK  ARBAAR
NEE B BRI HOETR -

B ETE

A& E B AR R AT &l 2 200764 A 27
HABRREARBRZHNEAR
AL AR ©

2007 7R - EERMLEBRAA
BEREBEESRLBRE - ARTE
B & 1%5.0478 7T RIB A $£22,820,0008%
ARG  BEBBAE=F  -%S5H
f& #E R 7201057 A 18H 2201747 A
178 HA R 17 3 74201747 A188 3
Hio M20145E308310  BABELE 2
2 EZEEREE BT -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

17 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM (Cont’d)

(c) Share option scheme (Cont'd)
On 11 October 2013, the Board of Directors approved the second grant of
options to eligible employees to subscribe for a total of 10,000,000 share of the
Company at an exercise price of HK$9.98 per share with vesting period of 3 years.
These share options may be exercisable at any time during the period from 11
October 2016 to 10 October 2023.

Movements in share options are as follows:

17 BERBRAHE ()
(c) BBRRFEETE ()
R20135E108 118 EERILESE -
RAEEREES R L BRE - AlikfT
1 {8 F189.9878 7L R B & ££10,000,000
BARBRD  BBHA=F - %%
BE AR HE AT 7A2016F 10311 H 220234
T0R10B HARIRTT{E ©

BREZZEBIT

Number of share options

BRERE
2015 2014
2015%F 201445
At 1 April W4A1H 10,000,000 4,700,000
Granted s - 10,000,000
Exercise of share options MR T T = (4,700,000)
Forfeited B (100,000) =
At 31 March MR3A31H 9,900,000 10,000,000

The above outstanding share options have the following expiry dates and

Lt A RITE B 2 BV A R AT

exercise prices: BT
Exercise price Number of
Expiry date per share HK$ Share options
E 5 H BRITEEST BREHE
2015 2014
20155 20144F
10 October 2023 2023%F 104108 9.98 9,900,000 10,000,000

Total proceeds from the exercise of share options during the year ended 31 March
2014 to convert into 4,700,000 shares of the Company were HK$23,685,000. The
weighted average closing price of the shares immediately before the dates on
which the options were exercised was HK$9.38.

The fair value of the options granted on 11 October 2013 determined using
the binomial model was HK$18,529,000 at the grant date. The significant inputs
to the model were share price of HK$9.98 at the grant date, exercise price of
HK$9.98, volatility of 45%, expected annual dividend yield of 9%, an expected
option life of 10 years and an annual risk free interest rate of 2.09%. The volatility
measured at the grant date was referenced to the historical volatility of the
Company.

HE2014F3831ALFE - A&k
#54,700,0008% 2N 2 &) B 19 2 B8 % 4
Y& 17 BT 15 578 48 B8 /523,685,000
TC o EEETTIE M ARAE B AT NE F 9%
PUTHEB9.388 T -

ZEDRLBRENR T B E2013F
WANBEZE-ZTEXBHZAAES
18,529,000/ 7T ° % E X 2 & K EUI&
BIERE B AR B B 2 §i%0.987%5
TL 1TEEAENRSE T KIEA
45% - TBEAFER B BME A% « 8
HRERESR B10F - FEERKT
EAH209% - MEH BHEZKEE T
BEXRNBZBEEBEME -
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18 RESERVES

18 f#fE
(a) Group (a) A&EE
Available-
Foreign for-sale
Capital  Statutory currency  Share-based financial
reserve reserves translation  compensation assets Retained
(Note (i))  (Note (ii) reserve reserve reserve earnings Total
; THHE
BARE  iERE  ERE DRfBE  SREE X
(W) (WYREG) it HERE W REEN @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR TR TR
At 1 April 2013 ®2013%451R 1,000 55,805 464,953 5737 1 2,001,936 2529432
Profit attributable to equity ADRRAERFEAA
holders of the Company E(REF = = = = - 1116802 1,116802
Currency translation differences SEREER - - (4,995) - - - (4,995)
Fair value gains on available-for-sale  FIEHESBEAEMNE
financial assets (Note 11) WADAE (FrEn) = - - - 17 - 17
Total comprehensive income 2ENEER - - (4,995) - 17 1116802 1,111,824
Transactions with owners; BEFNETIRS
Share-based compensation expenses AR AR 2 BEZ L - - - 1834 = = 1834
Exercise of share options iERRE - - - (5737) - - (5737)
2012/2013 final dividends 2012203E KBRS = = = = - (578405 (578409)
2013/2014 interim dividends 201320145 HRE = = = = - (578569 (578569)
Total transactions with owners HEENETIR 588 = = = (3903) - (1156974)  (1,160877)
At 31 March 2014 R2014%3A4318 1,000 55,805 459,958 1,834 18 1961764 2480379
Representing: RN
Proposed final dividend (Note 29) BEAMRE (M) 940,175
Qthers it 1,021,589
1,961,764
At 1 April 2014 R201454 510 1,000 55,805 459,958 1,834 18 1,961,764 2,480,379
Profit attributable to equity RRTEEERBA
holders of the Company iyl - - - - - 1,074,785 1,074,785
Currency translation differences NEREEE - - (2,542) = = - (2,542)
Fair value gains on available-for-sale HEESHEENS
financial assets (Note 11) WENAE (FEn) = o = S 29 = 29
Release of reserve upon disposal of LERELNFERK
interests in joint ventures B8 7 - - 4,322 - - - 4322
Total comprehensive income PEYHEE - - 1,780 - 29 1,074,785 1,076,594
Transactions with owners: BEFAETZRS
Share-based compensation expenses  LARIAAER 2 BiE % - - - 3,834 - 18 3,852
Transfer to statutory reserve EERER - 127,048 - - - (127,048) =
2013/2014 final dividends 2013/2014ERBRE = = = = - (940,175)  (940,175)
2014/2015 interim dividends 201420155 R HR S - = = = - (578569)  (578,569)
Total transactions with owners HEEANETR SR - 127,048 - 3,834 - (1,645,774) (1,514,892)
At 31 March 2015 R2015%3 8314 1,000 182,853 461,738 5,668 47 1,390,775 2,042,081
Representing: R
Proposed final dividend (Note 29) 2ERBRR (k) 578,569
Qthers Hif 812,206
1,390,775
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

18 RESERVES (Cont'd)
(b) Company

18 f#fE (&)
(b) <A F]

Share-based

compensation Retained
reserve earnings Total
AR 13
REEGRE REEF st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FET FE T
At 1 April 2013 7A20135F481H 5,737 886,280 892,017
Profit for the year FERF = 1,295,812 1,295,812
Exercise of share options MR T T (5,737) = (5,737)
2012/2013 final dividends 2012/2013F R AR B = (578,405) (578,405)
2013/2014 interim dividends 2013/20145F F B 8. = (578,569) (578,569)
Share-based compensation expense AR BERE 2 BES S 1,834 = 1,834
At 31 March 2014 7A2014%3A31H 1,834 1,025,118 1,026,952
Representing: R~
Proposed final dividend (Note 29) EE RS (M5E29) 940,175
Others Hith 84,943
1,025,118
At 1 April 2014 20144818 1,834 1,025,118 1,026,952
Profit for the year F R A - 1,335,992 1,335,992
2013/2014 final dividends 2013/2014F R HARR B - (940,175) (940,175)
2014/2015 interim dividends 201472015 F B B - (578,569) (578,569)
Share-based compensation expense AR AEEE 2 BES 3,834 18 3,852
At 31 March 2015 #201563831H 5,668 842,384 848,052
Representing: RN
Proposed final dividend (Note 29) EHRARHRE (FT5E29) 578,569
Others EHfth 263,815
842,384
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

18 RESERVES (Cont'd)
(b) Company (Cont’d)

HeBRENE (B)

18 f#fH ()
(b) 27 ()

Notes:

0]

Capital reserve represents the difference between the nominal value of shares
of subsidiaries acquired pursuant to a reorganisation in November 2004 over the
nominal value of the share capital of the Company issued in exchange thereof.

Statutory reserves represent the legal reserve of a subsidiary incorporated in
Macau and statutory reserves of a subsidiary incorporated in the PRC.

In accordance with the Macao Commercial Code, the subsidiary incorporated
in Macau is required to set aside a minimum of 25% of its after-tax profit to
legal reserve until the balance of this reserve reaches a level equivalent to 50%
of its capital. The amount of legal reserve of the subsidiary has reached 50% of
its capital.

The subsidiary established in the PRC is required to make appropriations to
certain statutory reserves from profit for the year after offsetting accumulated
losses from prior years before any profit distribution to equity holders. The
percentages to be appropriated to different statutory reserves are determined
according to the relevant regulations in the PRC or at the discretion of the board
of the subsidiary. Such statutory reserves can only be used to offset accumulated
losses, to increase capital, or for special bonus or collective welfare of employees.

These statutory reserves cannot be distributed to equity holders of the subsidiary.

faE

iy BARMGEERE2004F1A 2EH
Frig BB B A D 2 F{EE AR
AR BT 2 RAEE =58 ©

(i) EEREEIBEPIEMAK 2 M B
RE 2 BV ER P B L
Z BRI EE R

RIERPIRE AR - RRPIFEMA S
2 B A B 7B H Bk B A& i A B
WREAE LR EEaES
BEZHE RN EBRAS0%ELE - £l
BEZMBRARSEHEZSEE
EHRRAR509% ©

Wb B 2 B A BARIE # A
G B BEE LR IR AR T
BRABIE A Z AT - (A R A
REETATHG  RETREE
S 2 B 5 T RAA T EE
SHBAREEBETRE 2k
R T IR B A - I
AR BRI HE T2 &
wiEF -

ZRERBTREDIKRTHBEARZ
BHEFEA -

19 BORROWINGS 19 BE&
Group Company
AEH b N/NE|
2015 2014 2015 2014
20154 20144 20155 20144
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$’000 HKS$'000
THET FHT FH&xT THT
Non-current: FERE :
Loan from a non-controlling interest INEPNGIPT e e oy
of a subsidiary (Note())) RAEER (M 144,409 47,509 = -
Current: FE -
Short-term bank loans (Note (ii)) % ERERITE R (P EEG) 987,911 = 787,911 =
Notes: Mzt :
(i) The loan from a non-controlling interest of a subsidiary is denominated in US Dollars, () BB RFEEEHMEEREEETIAET

unsecured and non-interest bearing. The loan has no pre-determined terms of

repayment and is regarded as quasi equity contribution to the subsidiary.

(i) The bank loans bear interest at floating rates. The fair value of the bank loans (ii)
approximates their carrying amounts.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

19 BORROWINGS (Cont’d) 19 {88 (&)

At 31 March 2015, the Group's and the Company’s bank loans were repayable as M2015%3A318 - AEERARREE
follows: BZRTERAOT
Group Company
rEE bN/N|
2015 2014 2015 2014
20155 201445 20155 20144

HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FTET TERT TET

Within 1 year —FRA 987,911 = 787,911 =
The exposure of the Group’s and the Company's bank borrowings to interest rate AREE AR ABR2015F3A31H ZRTT
changes at 31 March 2015 is disclosed in Note 3.1(a). 1B SR R B [ i R B RO M 531 (a) o
The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Company’s bank borrowings are AEEERARGRITERZEBRERN
denominated in the following currencies. TE%EHE
Group Company
rEE PN
2015 2014 2015 2014
20155 20144 20155 20144

HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT TET TR TAT

uss EV 787,911 - 787,911 -
HKS BT 200,000 - - -
987,911 - 787,911 -
As at 31 March 2015, the Company had given guarantees to various banks to M2015%3A318 - AR A E M % RIR
support general banking facilities granted to certain subsidiaries amounting to TIEHER UXEBRTFTETHEA
HK$2,516,424,000 (2014: HK$1,342,489,000). As at 31 March 2015, the utilised amount 7] @ % 3£2,516,424,000% JT (20144 :
of such facilities covered by the Company’s guarantees was HK$200,000,000 (2014 1,342,489,000% 7T) 2 —MEIRITHLE -
Nil). 20155F3A31H * AR RIERZ B R
& 2 B2 8 F € %8 5200,000,000% 7T (2014
F o)

EAHBERERAT 2014/2015 FERE 109



Sh\TEMENTS (Cont'd)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are as follows:

FRIBRENE (B)

20 JEFEFTEH
EERAEENMBELEHBRBENT

Group
rEE
2015 2014
2015 20144F
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FET T
Deferred income tax liabilities to be settled BBER2EABIAZ
after more than 12 months BEMBHAE 12,178 58,267
The net movement in the deferred income tax account is as follows: BRIEFMSHENFEBIT ¢
Group
rEE
2015 2014
20156 20144F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
At 1 April R4A1H 58,267 43,738
Currency translation differences GNEE A = EE (52) (194)
Charged to the consolidated income statement R AW R 8 11,131 14,723
Transfer to current tax liabilities EREARTIEAE (57,168) =
At 31 March MW3A318 12,178 58,267
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

20 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Cont'd)

20 EEFEH (F)

Deferred income tax assets: BLEREBEE
Group
rEE
Provisions
for doubtful
debts and
staff benefits Total
RIRES T
a2 345 st
HK$’000 HK$’000
FH FHT
At 1 April 2013 720134810 4,540 4,540
Credited to the consolidated income statement RERERERFTA 900 900
At 31 March 2014 7A2014%3A31H 5,440 5,440
Charged to the consolidated income statement REF B R R IR (522) (522)
At 31 March 2015 72015§3A31H 4,918 4,918
Deferred income tax liabilities: EEMEHEE
Group
rEE
Undistributed
Accelerated tax profits of a
depreciation  subsidiary and
allowance an associate Total
Fff /&8 A =) B2
IR IE A= NE
mERE R BT et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THER THERT FHET
At 1 April 2013 7A2013F481H 2,240 46,038 48,278
Currency translation differences SN A T = A = (194) (194)
Charged to the consolidated RERE Wa R BR
income statement 6,810 8,813 15,623
At 31 March 2014 72014538311 9,050 54,657 63,707
Currency translation differences SN T 2R = (52) (52)
Charged to the consolidated RéRE W RN
income statement 469 10,140 10,609
Transfer to current tax liabilities upon ENBRARAEDIK
intention to distribute dividends % 2 B 88 3 2 B AR
by a subsidiary MIBEE = (57,168) (57,168)
At 31 March 2015 7201538310 9,519 7,577 17,096
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HeBRENE (B)

20 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Cont'd) 20 BB (&)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss carry-forwards to extent that BEMSHEEDREENTIAEERE
the realisation of the related tax benefit through future taxable profits is probable. 7R MELAE P AR 8 B 1 1) B AR B A
The Group did not recognise deferred income tax assets of HK$1,825,500 (2014 SEMEATIEN SRR o A% E I E
HK$761,000) in respect of tax losses amounting to HK$7,302,000 (2014: HK$3,043,000) ] 45 88 LUK 88 AR 2R B AR B W 2 ) B TE S
that can be carried forward against future taxable income. Tax losses amounting to 187,302,000 7T (20144F : 3,043,000/ JT)
HK$496,000, HK$760,000 and HK$1,787,000 and HK$4,259,000 will expire in 2017, T SRR & AT 15 B & B2 1,825,50078 7T (2014
2018, 2019 and 2020, respectively. F : 761,000/ 7T) © # FA20174F » 20185F

20195 K2020F B B B TH BB 5 5 A
496,000/ 7T ' 760,000/ JT * 1,787,000/ JT
124,259,000/ 7T °

21 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 21 ERRRERE
Group
rEE
2015 2014
20155 20144
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Trade payables FEfTBR X 700,745 785,421
Bills payables AN EE 46,187 54,046
746,932 839,467
The carrying values of trade and bills payables approximate their fair values. ENEFREZEREZERELEE QAR E
BE -
Credit period granted by creditors generally ranges from 30 to 90 days. BABRETZEESH KN F30E0
Ee
Trade and bills payables, based on goods delivery dates, were aged as follows: EN IR R RIR 2 BRERRRZ G B HmN
T
Group
AEME
2015 2014
2015%F 20144
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
0 - 60 days 0— 60K 442,386 598,316
61 - 120 days 61— 120K 302,659 196,286
121 days - 1 year 121K — 14 1,887 44,865
746,932 839,467
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

21 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES (Cont'd)

22

Trade and bills payables are denominated in the following currencies:

"
1"!

21 EAERRESE (F)

RN ERARER AT EHEHE

Group
rEE
2015 2014
2015%F 20144
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
uss ETT 599,132 677,704
HKS BT 68,936 71,634
RMB ARE 53,466 78,620
VND MEE 15,174 =
Others Hh 10,224 11,509
746,932 839,467
ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 22 FEGHIE B R E MR RIE
Group Company
AEE ¥ /N
2015 2014 2015 2014
20155 20144 20154 20144
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHIT F#&T THT
Accrual for operating expenses EiER 2 ETER 65,360 99,370 3,009 3,294
Payables for purchase of property, BEME - BEKIERE
plant and equipment ZIERTAR 35,490 30,620 = =
Provision for employee benefits EERAZ L #E
expense (including bonus) (BIFEIEAT) 101,176 105,572 - -
Provision for customer claims BERERE 1,724 20,026 = -
Receipts in advance TEM IR 2,107 7,251 - -
Others HAth 99,981 128,250 3,052 770
305,838 391,089 6,061 4,064

Accruals and other payables are denominated in the following currencies:

R B R 4 SRR A T 31 S

H
Group Company
rEE RAE]

2015 2014 2015 2014
20154 20144F 20154 20144
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
FHExT FHT FET FET
HKS BT 146,598 215,246 6,061 4,064
RMB AR 146,337 161,177 - =
uss$ ETT 12,770 14,565 = =
Others Hih 133 101 = =
305,838 391,089 6,061 4,064
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23 OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAINS/(LOSSES) - NET 23 Hitt AR EMIKE (E8) - B8
2015 2014
20155 20144
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Other income: HABKA -
Sale of residual materials aek=—Fl[:Z 3 b = 37,581 42,485
Sub-contracting income D BHEA 17,456 17,494
Handling income BERA 6,462 5,750
Rental income WA 4,706 6,048
Government grants IR R 4,214 8,097
Customer compensation on order cancellation BEEUHET EEE 13,304 17,256
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment  H &%  BE LREFTE U 3,124 11,996
Sundry income IR A 13,060 9,386
99,907 118,512
Other gains/(losses) — net: HApU s (BE) — B8 ¢
Derivative financial instruments — PTESBMT A — RHINEAL
forward foreign exchange contracts 15,529 2,943
Net foreign exchange (losses)/gains HNEE (B548),/ W25 FE (6,361) 3,214
9,168 6,157
109,075 124,669
24 EXPENSES BY NATURE 24 BMEASHBEX
2015 2014
20155 20146
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTEx TAT
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Note 7) W - BE REEBETE (3E7) 150,150 157,819
Amortisation of land use rights (Note 6) Tl PR (FYste) 1,286 1,306
Cost of raw materials and consumables used R B2 8 # G 188 FA A AR 5,152,507 5,506,778
Provision for impairment of trade receivables-net FEUBR TR B — 55 4,328 676
Employee benefits expense (including directors’
emoluments) (Note 25) BRERIAY (REESHE) (FHFE25) 506,940 471,901
Operating lease payments in respect of land
and buildings TH REFEERNASL 1,436 1,045
Provision/(Reversal of provision) for slow-moving
and obsolete inventories HHERRETSRE (B ERR) 6,171 (10,364)
Auditor’s remuneration %R E B 2,254 2,090
Sundry expenses IR 80,049 128,295
Total cost of sales, distribution and selling expenses HEKAE - DK
and general and administrative expenses HERTBER R RITRAS 5,905,121 6,259,546
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

25 EEREAXE (BRESHE)

25 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE (INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

2015 2014

20155 201445

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Wages, salaries, bonus and allowances IE  Hae  JEARERL 450,720 430,359
Retirement benefit — defined RIREF) — EREH G

contribution schemes (Note (a)) (M%) 19,865 14,173

Staff welfare and benefits B T &F= 32,503 25,535

Share-based compensation expense PARSAD B A 2 e 3,852 1,834

506,940 471,901

(a) Retirement benefit - defined contribution schemes

(a) BHIEF — ERLRETE

The Company’s subsidiary in the PRC is a member of the state-managed
retirement benefits scheme operated by the Government of the PRC. The
Group contributes to the scheme at 14% of the basic salaries of the subsidiary’s
employees subject to a cap and has no further obligations for the actual
payment of pensions or post-retirement benefits beyond its contributions.
The state-managed retirement plans are responsible for the entire pension
obligations payable to retired employees.

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to join the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme (“the MPF Scheme”), a defined contribution scheme
managed by an independent trustee. Under the MPF Scheme, the Group and its
employees make monthly contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employees’
earnings as defined under the Mandatory Provident Fund legislation. Both the
Group's and the employees’ contributions are subject to a cap of HK$1,500 per
month and thereafter contributions are voluntary.

The Company’s subsidiary in Vietnam contributes to stated-sponsored
employees’ social insurance scheme for its employees in Vietnam. The Group
contributes to the scheme at a rate of 18%, subject to a cap, of the employee’s
salary. The state-sponsored social insurance scheme is responsible for the entire
obligations payable to retired employees.

RRRRH B 2 M B R B AT BB
PR HE1T B 3R B R AR AR AR B R 81 2 B
B - AEBERMBARREEEAHE
Z214%[A) &t &) 5k (R @R —
ER) - MEREETI - XBERS
NRASHEERBMN 2 E—FEME -
BREEZRAKEIBEMERAKESR
A RKE

AEBMELZHERBRE S MAHE
ATESTE ([RESTE]) - Z&t
SEABYZEATIE 2 EEMERG
- RIBFREBESHE - AEBRHE
BiRAHEAESKIEERE ZRE N
AZ5%ET AMETEIfEHHR - A&
B XEEHZHUFTA1,5008 LA
R HEERZHRBEREE -

AARRBEzHBEAR AEEREE
BERMBRETZEELSRBE
ER R - AEEREBH S 218%
(ER) MstEEHHRK - BR#ETZ
HERBTE AR BRKEBIREA
BIREE -
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y
IAL STATEMENTS (Contd) FEMBRAMNT (8)
25 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE (INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) 25 EEFEFXH (BEEEME) (B)
(Cont'd)
(b) Directors’ emoluments (b) EEM S
The remuneration of every director for the year ended 31 March 2015 is set HE015F3A3NBLEEE SES
out below: ZB&amT
Employer’s
contribution
Discretionary  to retirement
Fees Salaries Bonuses schemes Total
RIRGHE
we e BEEAL  ZEEHEX st
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT THET THET FTHERT THERT
Ip Ping Im 3030 - = - - _
Choi Kin Chung 2Eh - - - - -
Wan Wai Loi FER 1,500 3,377 9,667 13 14,557
Tsang Kang Po BER 1,000 2,621 8,718 18 12,357
Lam Wing Tak = 1,000 1,962 7,073 18 10,053
Lau Yiu Tong ZRE - - - - -
Chan Yue Kwong, Michael — FRIA Y 210 - - - 210
Ng Ching Wah hig%E 210 - - - 210
Sze Kwok Wing, Nigel i=iE 210 - - - 210
4,130 7,960 25,458 49 37,597
The remuneration of every director for the year ended 31 March 2014 is set HEW4F3IANBITFE 855
out below: ZMEmT
Employer’s
contribution
Discretionary  to retirement
Fees Salaries Bonuses schemes Total
RKETE
we i BB ZEEHER o
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAT FAT FHET FET
Ip Ping Im Eimi - = - - _
Choi Kin Chung gt - - - - -
Wan Wai Loi FER 1,500 3,630 8,481 15 13,626
Tsang Kang Po BN 1,000 3,350 7111 15 11,476
Lam Wing Tak M= 1,000 3,125 5617 15 9,757
Lau Yiu Tong 2R - _ _ _ _
Chan Yue Kwong, Michael — BR#A 3% 210 = = = 210
Ng Ching Wah hEE 210 = = = 210
Sze Kwok Wing, Nigel i S 210 = = = 210
4,130 10,105 21,209 45 35,489
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

25 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE (INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

(Cont'd)
(c) Five highest paid individuals

25 EERANX

(c) BBBREFAL
HZE2015F3A31BILEE - AEH

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group for
the year ended 31 March 2015 include 3 directors (2014: 3 directors), whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented above. The aggregate
emoluments payable to the remaining 2 individuals (2014: 2 individual) are as

follows:

H (BEESE

2SR BEEHATEREIZREE (2014
F38EZ) FEZHMESER LT
DHTRER o B8R T2 At (2014

F2R) HEBBEWT ¢

2015 2014

20154 20144F

HK$'000 HKS$'000

FET THT

Salaries and allowances e RoEBL 3,972 2,710

Discretionary bonuses BB E4L 1,335 1,524
Retirement benefit - defined BRIREF — EREEAREE

contribution schemes 18 15

Share-based compensation expense IRHD AERZBES T 389 183

5,714 4,432

The number of non-directors with emoluments within the following bands:

FEFATZMEETIHHREZ A

2
2015 2014
20154 20144
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T — 2,000,00078 7T - 1
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,00178 7T — 2,500,0007% 7T 1 1
HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7T — 3,000,0007% 7T - -
HK$3,000,001 — HK$3,500,000 3,000,00178 7T — 3,500,0007%8 7T 1 =
2 2
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26 FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS

HeBRENE (B)

26 BMBWARKA

2015 2014
2015%F 20144F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT

Finance income: E A NE
- Bank interest income — SRITRLEHA 17,949 8,287
- Net foreign exchange gain — HME F i s E 1,583 =
19,532 8,287

Finance costs: R Ip% N
— Interest expense on loans — RITERFERX (6,581) =
- Net foreign exchange loss — SNEESIBIFE (379) (1,594)
(6,960) (1,594)
Net finance income U FE 12,572 6,693

27 INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The Group is primarily subject to Hong Kong profits tax and PRC enterprise income
tax. Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for at the rate of 16.5% (2014: 16.5%)
on the estimated assessable profits for the year. PRC enterprise income tax has been
provided for at the rate of 25% (2014: 25%) on the estimated assessable profits for
the year.

The amount of income tax charged to the consolidated income statement represents:

27 FRBHIRAX

AEEFEHMNEBFEHERE D
e - EAMNEBRIMBBEARMDT
JiE SR F4216.5% (20144 : 16.5%) 1
L PRSEMSHIREBEFR
fi 5 FE 3R B4 i F $225% (20144 + 25%)

TR -

RiFAWER IR ZABEHRA

2015 2014
2015%F 20144F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT

Current income tax BVERFRSHR
- Hong Kong profits tax — BEBNEH 72,575 128,944
- PRC corporate income tax — REERMEH 66,331 58,790
— Over-provision in prior years — BEFEBERE - (5,707)
Deferred tax (Note 20) RIERIE (FiEE20) 11,131 14,723
150,037 196,750
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

27 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Cont'd)
The tax on the Group's profit before income tax differs from the theoretical amount
that would arise using the weighted average tax rate applicable to profits of the

27 FrBBBAE (M)
B B R T 48 B4 A R 2 BB
ARG B2 TR R

consolidated entities as follows: ZEREEIERNT
2015 2014
2015%F 20144F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Profit before income tax FriS B A& A 1,219,703 1,311,141
Less: Do
Associates and joint venture's results reported BENTINRABARIZ2HRES
net of tax (TEH) (33,829) (15,844)
1,185,874 1,295,297
Tax calculated at weighted average domestic tax REAREE AR 2 NETH
rate applicable to profits in respective jurisdictions TR E 2 Fi1E 140,181 186,846
Income not subject to tax BERBI (5,421) (1,049)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes AR 2,529 7,841
Over-provision in prior years BEFEBEEE - (5,707)
Tax losses not recognised REERHFIEEE 2,608 447
Tax on certain undistributed retained profit M B A RHE TR IRRE A
of subsidiaries ZTHIE 10,140 8,813
Others HAth = (441)
150,037 196,750
The weighted average domestic applicable tax rate was: IEE AT EABENT
Weighted average domestic applicable tax rate TN T E AR R 11.8% 14.4%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

,7‘*I¢1
* IVANCIAL INFCRATION

- kER

28 EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a)

(b)

120

Basic

HeBRENE (B)

28 BREF
(a) &

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to
equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of shares in
issue during the year.

BRERBFNRARBEEREE AR
18 M B FF R B AT i F 5 21

5 -

2015 2014

20155 20144F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAxT

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company 2N BI4E 25 B A FEAG %5 7 1,074,785 1,116,802
Weighted average number of shares in issue BEEITIRMD T8 (FR)

(thousands) 1,446,423 1,445,579

Basic earnings per share (HK$ per share) BREXRZN (BRET) 0.74 0.77

Diluted

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares. Shares issuable under the share option schemes
(Note 17) are the only dilutive potential ordinary shares. A calculation is made in
order to determine the number of shares that could have been acquired at fair
value (determined as the average market price of the Company’s shares during
the year) based on the monetary value of the subscription rights attached to
the outstanding share options. The number of shares calculated as above is
compared with the number of shares that would have been issued assuming
the exercise of the share options.

e
BRETRNEHBETEINER
Pz i FEaBERRLILMAEES
BEEBERAE - REBRESS
(Bf3E17) AT T E#IT 2 B fn AME—2ERK
BEuE s BEE AR - SHETRE
BEPMR M ARTTEBRE ZREE2E
KEEFL UWEERAAE (BF
AARRB I 2 FamEERE) KiE
ZRMEE o LA EIEFE 2R
ZE S RERBREETEMERITZ
PRI BB AL E -

2015 2014

20155 20144F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHT

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company  ZNA G| B AFE(L S 1,074,785 1,116,802
Weighted average number of shares in issue BT IAEFEH & (TI%)

(thousands) 1,446,423 1,445,579
Adjustment for share options (thousands) B (1) 693 -
Weighted average number of shares for BiREFRN 2R

diluted earnings per share (thousands) INEEFHHE (FRR) 1,447,116 1,445,579
Diluted earnings per share (HK$ per share) SREERN (FRET) 0.74 0.77

The diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31 March 2014 were the same
as the basic earnings per share as the potential ordinary shares arising from the
share options granted by the Company outstanding during the year ended 31
March 2014 were anti-dilutive.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

29 DIVIDENDS
2015 2014
2015 20144
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Interim dividend paid of HK40 cents EIRAHAE 400l 2 FEIAR B
(2014: HK40 cents) (Note (7)) (20144 : 401l (HEEEG)) 578,569 578,569
Proposed final dividend of HK40 cents BORHS B 40l 2 RABAR B,
(2014: HK40 cents) (Note (i) (20144 : & 400L) (BIFEGD)) 578,569 578,569
No special final dividend ERHAFBIAR R
(2014: HK25 cents) (20144F : A¥251) = 361,606
1,157,138 1,518,744
Notes: BEE

()  On 21 November 2014, the Company's Board of Directors declared an interim dividend
of HK40 cents per share (2014: HK40 cents), for the six-month period ended 30
September 2014. The amount was paid on 30 December 2014.

(i) On 25 June 2015, the Company’s Board of Directors proposed a final dividend of
HK40 cents per share and no special final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2015.
These proposed dividends are not reflected as dividend payable in these financial
statements.

0]

(if)

R2014F11 8218 ARAREEZRE
K& 22014F9A30H 1k 7518 B HifE
A HA AR B B AR S 401l (20144 : 7B
B400l) - Z FRIBE R2014F 128
30B XAt o

R2015F6A258 AR BlEERE
EEREE2015F3A3B EFER
HARR B RS B 400l - ER BRI
B o BURMNR B W ENZET HHRE
R AEMRE -
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION
BEEN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) FeEHRRNEE (8)
30 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 30 RERERERKE
(a) Cash generated from operations (a) MEEBELERS
2015 2014
20154 20144
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAET
Profit before income tax Fr 575 B & A 1,219,703 1,311,141
Adjustments for: ATRNBIE 7 9% -
Share of profits of associates AGHE = N B A (34,213) (36,499)
Share of losses of joint ventures DihEEREESE 384 20,655
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME  BEMREZITE 150,150 157,819
Amortisation of land use rights b {5 R A i 4 1,286 1,306
Gain on disposal of property, LEYE - BEREHEZ
plant and equipment BRI (3,124) (11,996)
Gain on disposal of interests in joint ventures HERE LA AR 2 Wk (29,265) =
Reversal of provision for impairment of R—EE AR 2 SR E
interests in an associate BEED (33,200) =
Share-based compensation expense AR BER 2 BES T 3,852 1,834
Finance income BEUWA (19,532) (8,287)
Finance costs BhE R A 6,960 =
Operating profit before working capital changes BIBECEEAI 2 KL A 1,263,001 1,435,973
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FEERA /(#%m) 165,200 (136,995)
Decrease in trade and bills receivables JE U BR 7R N =B R 44,732 107,742
(Increase)/decrease in deposits, prepayments and e BNREEREAM
other receivables FEUZRIE (38 n),/ Fi (45,749) 9,934
Decrease in amounts due from associates UL B N R IR 28,146 20,955
(Decrease)/increase in derivative PTESMIA CGRd),/#Em
financial instruments (22,023) 22,742
(Decrease)/increase in trade and bills payables FERERFR R R CRid), /18N (92,535) 56,506
(Decrease)/increase in accruals and other payables FEEtIEE R E b E IR
CRA),/ (90,121) 18,026
(Decrease)/increase in amount due to an associate FEREE & DN RFIE CRd),/
=0 (1,456) 6,030
Cash generated from operations BERBEARS 1,249,195 1,540,913
(b) In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from disposals of (b) REEHEESFRERA  HEYWE K
property, plant and equipment comprise: ERZERBRERRE
2015 2014
20155 20144
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FHT
Net book amount (Note 7) BREFE (FFE7) 4,327 3,095
Gain on disposal of property, HEYE - BER&E 2 W=
plant and equipment 3,124 11,996
Unrealised gain on sales of machinery to MBS N B SRS 2 KRB RIS
an associate = 4,054
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEYE  BERREFTEH0E
plant and equipment 7,451 19,145
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

31 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 31 REEE B

As at 31 March 2015, the Group had no material contingent liabilities (2014: Nil). M201563A318 - ASEWES A A

A& (20144 : ) o

32 COMMITMENTS 32 EAEAE
(a) Capital commitments (a) EAFEYE
Capital expenditure contracted for at the balance sheet date but not yet incurred REEREFTHNMAEEZ EAAY
is as follows: LU
2015 2014
2015% 201445
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Contracted but not provided for: BT AV B R
Property, plant and equipment ME - R MERE 199,142 116,334
Leasehold land and land use rights FRE 1 Hb &% 2 {55 FR 4 33,443 48,151
232,585 164,485
At 31 March 2015, the Group did not have any significant share of capital MR2015F3 8318 + 2N & B 3 48 (£ {7
commitments of its associates (2014: Nil). DG B & N T & N A YE (20144 ¢
;) -
At 31 March 2015, the Group had authorised an injection of approximately M2015F3 8318 » REBEBH#E £ M
HK$581,985,000 (equivalent of US$75,051,000) (2014: HK$522,992,000 (equivalent W B B A B 5E & 49581,985,0007% JT
of US$67,426,000)) as capital of a subsidiary in Vietnam. (#8 2 875,051,000 7T) (20144 :
522,992,000/ 7T (#8 & 1067,426,0003
7)) e
(b) Operating lease commitments (b) EERWEE
The Group had future aggregate minimum lease payments under non- AEE (EREBRA) RIRL i R1E
cancellable operating leases of land and buildings, as lessee, as follows: FZAAMEEERORRFERE
FIBMBREWT
2015 2014
20155 20144F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAxT
As lessee: AN
Not later than 1 year THBE1F 372 352
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years BB 1 F BT EBB5F 489 98
861 450
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HeBRENE (B)

32 AXEEE ()
(b) EEBHNFENRE ()
AEE (EAEEA) FAMBEY
RORREEBLFTELBLOT :

32 COMMITMENTS (Cont’d)
(b) Operating lease commitments (Cont’d)
The Group had future aggregate minimum lease receipts under non-cancellable
operating leases, as lessor, as follows:

2015 2014
20155 20144F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FABT

As lessor: HAA
Not later than 1 year T F 1,381 1,131
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years B F R EBRSF 1,474 1,177
2,855 2,308

33 BREALRS
MfEM—H BN EZEKEEEH S —

33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly,
to control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in 7 RE S 2B REERKRITE
making financial and operating decisions. Parties are also considered to be related BAZEN AILEALTHRERFH
if they are subject to common control or common significant influence. HEoMAERBEATZEARZESKERE
Al QTR RA BE -

(a) EFBEATETZRZNOT :

(a) The following transactions were carried out with related parties:

2015 2014
20154 20144
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FET FH&T
Sales of goods HEEm
— Related party (Notes (i) and (ii)) — BEEAT (BHEE0E)) 1,475 2,136
— An associate (Note (ii) — Bt a) (ki) 25,191 26,431
26,666 28,567
Sales of machinery SHEMES
- An associate (Note (ii) — BN\ (FREdD) = 10,134
Rental income HESWA
— An associate (Note (iii)) — B A (M EEGi) 4,706 5,952
Sub-contracting income 2BEBWA
— An associate (Note (ii)) — B AT (MEEG)) 2,199 9,663
Handling income BEWRA
— An associate (Note (iv)) — BN A (FsEGv)) 5,922 5,750

124 Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited 2014 / 2015 Annual Report



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd) 33 ARMEALRS ()
(a) The following transactions were carried out with related parties: (Cont'd) (a) HEBREATETZRZWT © (&)
Notes: BieE -

(i) The related party is a company controlled by Mr. Henry Choi Wing Kong, the son
of Mr. Choi Kin Chung, a director of the Company.

(i) Goods and machinery are sold and sub-contracting income are received at prices
mutually agreed by both parties in the ordinary course of business.

(i

Rental income received is based on the size of the property and the relevant
market rate.

(iv) Handling fee received from an associate is charged at 2% to 3% of the value
of certain purchases made as an agent of the associate, and the rates of the
handling fee were mutually agreed by both parties. These transactions are not
included as the Group's sales and costs of sales.

(0]

(ii)

BEREALRARBESLEEDE
2 FERARIS RS2 AT -

HERSBE MR Z WA TIE
BEEBBRETRETHBEZ(ER
YHR ©

(i) WeER 2 M 2 YR A Th B 3R K/

HRRAT S EAE

(iv) &N FIWEREZ IR B A= AER

s N BRIE A ETTE T HRER2%
3% - MEEERLRTHEE
TR - ZFERXHWARFFAR

EE 2 HEREBEERA -
(b) Year-end balances arising from sub-contracting income and rental income (b) B2 BRANMBL W AKBEEZF
received: B4R
2015 2014
2015%F 201445
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FERT FHET
Amount due from an associate for sub-contracting  FEUEEZ A TS BUAFN
income and rental income HEWAFIE 461 713
Amount due to an associate for rental deposit received — FE{ B & A BIFEWF ©IX & 2B (4,574) (6,030)
(c) Year-end balances arising from purchase of goods on behalf: (c) ARABEERELEZEELR
2015 2014
2015%F 201445
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FERT FHET
Amount due from an associate NI E ] 39,793 67,687
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FEMBHRRME (B)

33 AEEALRSZ (F|)

(d) Key management compensation d FREBAEME
2015 2014
20156 20144
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Salaries, bonus and allowances e TEA RER 40,929 37,551
Retirement benefits — defined contribution schemes  RIKIBF] — FEEEA A2 67 55
40,996 37,606
34 PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS 34 REHRFFH AEEEF
The profit attributable to equity holders of the Company is dealt with in the financial PAN/NICIR - -l S = W (i | B
statements of the Company to the extent of approximately HK$1,335,992,000 (2014: = FT 7R #71,335,992,000% JT (20144F -
HK$1,295,812,000). 1,295,812,000/8 7T ) ©
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
HHHE

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS GEEE

Year ended 31 March,
BEIABLEE

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
20154 20144 20134 20124F 20114
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET T FHET FET FAT
Revenue WA 6,906,883 7,423,481 6,649,206 6,419,952 7,180,664
Gross profit EF 1,177,906 1,361,371 1,181,534 1,098,780 1,289,959
Profit attributable to: THIALEERA
Equity holders of RAFERFERA
the Company 1,074,785 1,116,802 925,165 893,053 876,374
Non-controlling interests e MR (5,119) (2,411) (852) 982 17,876
1,069,666 1,114,391 924,313 894,035 894,250
= A =E
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET GEEERER
As at 31 March,
M3A31H
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
201556 20144F 20134 20124 20114
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHT FHT FET FHT
Non-current assets EREHEE 1,760,187 1,471,289 1,372,858 1,489,768 1,572,210
Current assets MBEE 3,966,978 3,882,065 3,903,785 3,872,268 3,727,720
Total assets AERE 5,727,165 5,353,354 5,276,643 5,362,036 5,299,930
Current liabilities REAE 2,076,169 1,308,765 1,210,781 1,319,245 1,383,138
Total assets less current liabilities EZEABERTEBE 3,650,996 4,044,589 4,065,862 4,042,791 3,916,792
Non-current liabilities ErRFHaE 156,587 105,776 93,583 80,814 29,212
Total equity B 3,494,409 3,938,813 3,972,279 3,961,977 3,887,580
Net current assets mBEEFE 1,890,809 2,573,300 2,693,004 2,553,023 2,344,582
Equity attributable to: THI AT FE(ERERS -
Equity holders of the Company RATREREA A 3,496,715 3,935,013 3,965,845 3,954,691 3,800,556
Non-controlling interests FEPE S RS (2,306) 3,800 6,434 7,286 87,024
3,494,409 3,938,813 3,972,279 3,961,977 3,887,580
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GLOSSARY

SHAR

In this annual report (other than the Independent Auditor's Report and Financial
Information), unless the context otherwise requires, the following expression shall have
the following meanings:

"2015 Financial Year”

"AGM”

"Articles”

"Board”

"CG Code”

"Company”

"Directors”

"GFOUDH

"INED”

"Listing Rules”

"Model Code”

"PT Sri Lanka”

"SEQ”

"Shares”

"Share Option
Scheme”

"Stock Exchange”

for the year ended 31 March 2015

Annual general meeting of the Company

the Articles of Association of the Company, as amended from
time to time

The board of Directors of the Company
the Corporate Governance Code
Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited, an exempted company

incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability, the
shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange

the director(s) of the Company

the Company and its subsidiaries

the independent non-executive Directors

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers

Textured Jersey Lanka PLC (formerly known as Textured
Jersey Lanka (Private) Limited), a limited liability company
incorporated under the laws of Sri Lanka

Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the laws of
Hong Kong)

Shares issued by the Company, with a nominal value of
HK$0.001 each

the share option scheme adopted by the Company pursuant

to the written resolutions of the Shareholders of the Company
passed on 27 April 2007

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
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